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COSH was first established in 1987 It is a statutory body
vested with functions, as set out in the "Hong Kong Council
on Smoking and Health Ordinance” (Cap. 389), to protect and
improve the health of the community by:

1. Informing and educating the public on the harm of smoking
and its adverse effects on health;

2.Conducting and coordinating research into the cause,
prevention and cure of tobacco dependence;

3.Advising the Government, community health organizations
or any public body on matters relating to smoking and
health.

Under such a charter, COSH has taken up the role as an active
player and commentator on all issues relating to tobacco
control. We aim to act within our charter in response to the
changing local environment as it affects the promotion of
tobacco and the epidemic caused by smoking.
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ZEEHE Members of COSH
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B EFEZES Information & Research Committee

FE BPERLEMH Chairman Mr Antonio KWONG Cho-shing, MH
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SEBIZEBEE Legislation Committee

FE EHEEAKEMH Chairman  Mr Antonio KWONG Cho-shing, MH
£8 ZERiE+ Member Dr MAK Yiu-kwong
hgiE 2t MH Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
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=& Chairman
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Mr Antonio KWONG Cho-shing, MH
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Mr  Antonio KWONG, a qualified solicitor, is a
businessman. He joined COSH in 2009 and was
appointed as COSH Chairman in 2014. He is the
Chairman of the Information & Research Committee
and Legislation Committee, Vice-chairman of the
Executive Committee and also a member of the
Community Liaison Committee and Education &
Publicity Committee.

&= & Vice-chairman
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Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
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Ms Yolanda NG is a Councilor of Wan Chai District
and actively involved in public services. She joined
COSH in 2008 and is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and Community Liaison Committee
and also a member of the Education & Publicity
Committee, Information & Research Committee and
Legislation Committee.
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Ms Ada HO Ching-ying
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Ms Ada HO is an entrepreneur, she
founded a social enterprise and
non-profit organization. She joined
COSH in 2014 and is a member
of the Education & Publicity
Committee.
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Ms HSU Siu-man
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Ms HSU Siu-man is a registered
social worker in youth organization.
She joined COSH in 2014 and is
a member of the Education &
Publicity Committee.
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Dr Cindy LAI Kit-lim, JP
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Dr Cindy LAl is the Deputy
Director of Department of Health.
She joined COSH as an ex-officio
member in 2012 and is a member
of the Executive Committee.
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Dr Lee George LAM
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Dr George LAM is the Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Hong
Kong Cyberport Management
Co Ltd, a member of the Court of
the City University of Hong Kong
and President of Hong Kong-
ASEAN  Economic Cooperation
Foundation. He joined COSH
in 2015 and is a member of the
Community Liaison Committee.
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Dr Susie LUM Shun-sui
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Dr Susie LUM is the Immediate
Past President of The Hong Kong
Academy of Nursing. She joined
COSH in 2013 and is a member
of the Education & Publicity
Committee.
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Dr MAK Yiu-kwong is a secondary
school principal. He joined COSH
in 2012 and is a member of the
Community Liaison Committee,
Education & Publicity Committee,
Information & Research Committee
and Legislation Committee.
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Dr Christina MAW Kit-chee
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Dr Christina MAW Kit-chee is
the Chief Manager (Primary &
Community Services) of Hospital
Authority. She joined COSH in 2015
and isa member of the Information
& Research Committee.
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Ms Grace NG Yee-mei
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Ms Grace NG is the Assistant
Director of Information Services
Department. She joined COSH as
an ex-officio member in 2014 and
is a member of the Education &
Publicity Committee.
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Ms Gigi PANG is the director of
Evergreen Education Foundation
and actively involved in public
services, especially in  the
development of youth and sports.
She joined COSH in 2014 and is
a member of the Education &
Publicity Committee.
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Z 8 Member
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Dr David SUN Yee-wha

BB RITRIEAE  N2011EF
MAZEE RAHRBMEERES
%Z8-

Dr David SUN is a dentist. He
joined COSH in 2011 and is a
member of the Community Liaison
Committee.
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Dr Joyce TANG Shao-fen

BOBBER2012FMAZER
RREMMARZESIEDE
B®Z%LEB-
Dr Joyce TANG is a doctor. She
joined COSH in 2012 and is a
member of the Information
& Research Committee and

Legislation Committee.
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Mr Richard TSANG Lap-ki
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Mr Richard TSANG is the Chairman
of a public relations consultancy
group. He joined COSH in 2016
and is a member of the Education
& Publicity Committee.
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Mr Jackson WONG Fan-foung,
BBS, MH
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WONG is a
businessman. He joined COSH
in 2011 and is a member of the
Community Liaison Committee,
Education & Publicity Committee
Research

Mr  Jackson

and Information &
Committee.
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Prof Samuel WONG Yeung-shan
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Prof Samuel WONG is a professor
of Faculty of Medicine of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He joined COSH in 2014 and is
a member of the Information &
Research Committee.
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Mr Christopher YU is a consultant.
He joined COSH in 2012 and is
the Chairman of the Education
& Publicity Committee and also
a member of the Executive
Committee, Community Liaison
Committee and Legislation

Committee.
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Ms Vienna LAl Wai-yin
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Executive Director Ms Vienna LAl Wai-yin

Senior Project Mr Lawrence CHU Wai-hong
Manager

Ms Annie NG Lai-ying
Project Manager Ms Faine CHAN Wai-fan
Ms Dorothy LAW Wing-yi
Ms Jacqueline LEUNG Ho-yan
Ms Cynthy TANG Sze-nga
Executive Officer Ms Jessica LEE Pik-wan

Information and Mr Lancelot POON Chi-chung

Technology Manager
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Ms Samantha CHEUNG Suet-wing
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Ms Iris CHOW Wing-kwan (up to August 2016)
Ms Iris TONG Ngai-sze (up to September 2016)
Ms Amy TSANG Yuen-ling (up to September 2016)
Mr Tim CHEUNG Siu-him (up to November 2016)
Ms June MAN Kwan-yi (from September 2016)
Ms Christy HO Yin-wing (from December 2016)
Mr Jason HUNG Ho-wan (from December 2016)

Project Executive Ms Queenie NG Sheung-yin (up to June 2016)
Ms Carmen TAM Nga-man (from July 2016)

Educator Ms Irene CHUNG Tsui-woon

Ms KWAN Yuen-fong
Ms NG Lai-ming

Ms SO Yee-lun (from March 2017)

Executive Assistant  Ms Polly YAU Yi-chu

Ms Fiona YAU Kan-man (up to June 2016)

Ms Charmaine CHAN Ming-chu
(from September 2016)

Project Assistant Ms Ella YIM Wing-sheung
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Protecting the public health is at the top of the agenda
of Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health (“COSH").
Under the theme of “Smoke-free Family”, citizens were
encouraged to adopt a smoke-free lifestyle and motivate
family members, friends, colleagues and neighbours
to quit smoking through a series of education and
publicity programmes in 2016-2017. Meanwhile, COSH
actively advocates the Government and the Legislative
Council for strengthening the tobacco control measures,
particularly on the enlargement of pictorial health
warnings of cigarette packets, in order to reduce the
attractiveness of tobacco, motivate more smokers
to quit, deter youth from trying the first cigarette
and further reduce the smoking prevalence in
Hong Kong.

FE BPEER MH
Antonio KWONG Cho-shing, MH
Chairman
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FFEEE Chairman’s Report -

According to the Thematic Household Survey Report No. 59
of the Census and Statistics Department, the daily cigarette
smokers accounted for 10.5% of all persons aged 15 and over
in 2015 in Hong Kong (around 640,000 smokers) which is the
lowest on record. To further promote the smoke-free culture,
COSH organized a variety of activities under the theme of
“Smoke-free Family” to encourage the general public to
adopt a smoke-free lifestyle and motivate family members,
friends, colleagues and neighbours to kick the bad habit. The
campaign received overwhelming response and attracted
over 5,000 citizens to join the “Smoke-free Family” through
online platforms and street promotion counters.

To raise the public awareness, a campaign’s theme song,
"Give Up"” was produced by musician Mark LUl who had
quitted smoking and performed by Alex FONG, Smoke-free
Ambassador of the campaign. A love story was used as a
metaphor to encourage the audience to get rid of cigarettes
and their harmful effect. The song made the Top 3 in a few
radio station charts and the music video recorded over 100,000
online views.

Besides, COSH collaborated with a local artist, Nothing Serious,
to create a set of keyarts sharing how to support family

members, friends, colleagues and lovers to quit smoking. The
interesting presentation was further extended to the "Quit
Tips Keyart Design Competition” which was held to encourage
teenagers to motivate smokers to kick the habit with their
design talent through keyart and slogan. Over 1,800 high-
quality entries were received from more than 50 secondary
schools.
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The active participation of the business sector is crucial for
building a“Smoke-free Family”. COSH organized the “Hong Kong
Smoke-free Leading Company Awards 2016" together with the
Occupational Safety and Health Council, attracting over 480
companies from various industries and benefiting over 65,000
employees, both figures were the highest on record. The
Awards aimed to encourage businesses to promote smoke-
free messages and smoking cessation to their employees,
customers, the general public and other stakeholders for
creating a smoke-free culture. Immense gratitude also goes
out to nearly 50 major commerce chambers and associations,
as well as various smoking cessation service providers for their
tremendous ongoing support.

This year, 3 companies received Triple Gold Awards for their
continuous commitment; 10 companies received Gold
Awards, and one of them also received the Most Creative
Smoke-free Policy Award for recognition of its innovative
smoke-free initiatives; 9 companies received Silver Awards
and over 450 companies received Certificates of Merit. A wide
variety of smoke-free measures including “World No Tobacco
Day” promotion activity, smoking cessation reward scheme,
smoking cessation support group and smoke-free corner to
gather co-workers’ support for quitters, were adopted by the
award-winning companies.

COSH also tailored publicity programme for industry with high
smoking prevalence. “Smoke-free Construction Force”, as an
example, was launched for the construction industry whose
smoking rate was around 45%. The programme was fully
supported by the Construction Industry Council, Hong Kong
Construction Association, Hong Kong Construction Industry
Employees General Union and Hong Kong General Building

Contractors Association. Through health talks, smoking
cessation support and promotion collaterals, smoke-free
messages were spread among the construction industry.
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FFEEE Chairman’s Report -

Apart from the business sector, community involvement also
plays a significant role in building a smoke-free Hong Kong.
Following the success in previous years, COSH organized the
7% "Quit to Win" Smoke-free Community Campaign with the
School of Nursing and School of Public Health, The University
of Hong Kong. The campaign was again fully supported
by the 18 District Councils and district organizations. Over
100 recruitment and promotion activities were organized,
recruiting over 1,300 smokers to join the smoking cessation
contest and reaching over 40,000 citizens.

Prevention is better than cure. COSH has spared no effort
in deterring the next generation from lighting up the first
cigarette by launching a series of education programmes
such as “Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Leadership Training
Programme 2016-2017". The programme aims to instill
knowledge of tobacco control and smoking hazards in
youngsters, provide training on various skills, as well as sustain
their pioneering role in spreading smoke-free culture. It was
encouraging that the ambassadors sowed the seeds in the
community to gather the support from every sector for a
smoke-free Hong Kong through various innovative activities.
Their efforts, courage and organizing ability were much
appreciated.

Through the cooperation with schools and local professional
troupe, COSH conducted a brand-new interactive drama for
the "School Interactive Education Theatre”, titled “Smoke-free
Alliance” to raise the awareness of primary school students
on building a smoke-free environment. Smoke-free messages
were also promoted among students at different development
stages by “Smoke-free New Generation” health talks in schools.
We are glad that the above programmes were recommended
by the Education Bureau.
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Although the effects of smoking were well known among
the public, some smokers, especially those heavily addicted
to nicotine, were not willing to take their first step to quit
smoking as they held misconceptions about smoking and
quitting. COSH has organized the “Elderly Smoking Cessation
Promotion Project” since 2012 for enhancing the knowledge of
smoking hazards among senior citizens. Thanks to the positive
feedback, COSH again held the programme in 2016-2017.
Through health talks, elderly centre visits, “Smoke-free Doll”
workshops, street promotions and radio promotions, smoke-
free messages were disseminated to the elderly.

In order to protect public health, COSH actively urges and
supports the Government to further strengthen tobacco
control measures, including the enlargement of the size of
pictorial health warning to at least 85% of the two largest
surfaces of the packet, increasing the number of forms of
health warning from six to twelve and adding quitline 1833
183. The measure was first proposed to the Legislative Council
in May 2015 by the Government. We are delighted that the
measure will come into operation on 21 December 2017 after a

two-year discussion. According to the Tobacco Control Policy-
related Survey 2016, about 72.5% of all respondents supported
the increase in the coverage of the health warnings to 85%.
In addition, COSH has collected over 26,500 signatures from
citizens and organizations through street counters and an
online platform supporting the related measure since May
2015.
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COSH has serious concerns on the widespread and rapid growth
of e-cigarettes as their health risks and safety remain unknown.
The potential risks of e-cigarettes and misconceptions on their
usage for smoking cessation were explained through various
programmes and campaigns. COSH urged the Government to
enact a total ban on e-cigarettes in Hong Kong promptly to
prevent its epidemic. (Please refer to page 24 "Highlights” for
details)

To enhance interaction and communication with the public,
COSH launched a Smoke-free Family Facebook page (www.
facebook.com/smokefreefamily) to introduce COSH's activities
and disseminate information related to smoking and health.

Stepping into 2017, the year that marks the 35" anniversary of
tobacco control in Hong Kong and also the 30" anniversary of
COSH, I want to show the loftiest appreciation from my heart
towards the enthusiasm and invaluable recommendations
of COSH Council members, as well as the contributions of
the Secretariat’s staff. In addition, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to the Government, organizations, healthcare
professionals, academia, district organizations, media and
different stakeholders in the community for their support to
tobacco control in Hong Kong. With everyone's effort, we

hope the smoking prevalence will be dropped to a single digit
percentage in the near future.
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The smoking prevalence in Hong Kong has dropped
gradually since the 1980s. However, the swift popularity of
electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes) and emerging tobacco
products such as waterpipe and heat-not-burn tobacco all
over the world in recent years is alarming. Some of these
products are claimed to be less harmful than conventional
cigarettes. Their marketing strategies are mainly targeting
young people and renormalize smoking behaviour which
may encourage an epidemic of tobacco use. To raise the
publicawareness on the potential risks and safety problems of
these products, Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health
launched a series of education and publicity programmes.
There is no safe tobacco product in the world and no safe
level of exposure to harmful substances and carcinogens.
While studies on their impacts may take decades, both
smokers and non-smokers should refrain from using these
products.
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With the concerted efforts of different sectors in Hong Kong
over the past three decades, the achievements in tobacco
control are encouraging and remarkable. The prevalence of
daily cigarette smokers in Hong Kong was 10.5% according to
the Thematic Household Survey Report No. 59 of the Census
and Statistics Department. The smoking rate of secondary
school students and primary school students in Hong Kong
were 2.7% and 0.2% respectively, which hit a record low.

Marketed as trendy products. Safety in doubt

Yet, COSH has serious concern on the emergence of
e-cigarettes and new forms of tobacco products in recent
years. Similar to the marketing tactics of cigarettes in the
1980s, these products are marketed as trendy and novel. The
youth are being targeted through the easily accessible and
sweeping sales and promotion on social media and online
platforms. Some of them are claimed to be less harmful which
may attract smokers to use as a substitute to conventional
cigarette, as well as induce curious youngsters to try and
become a gateway to smoking.

More studies should be conducted to investigate the impact
of these new products on health. There is no safe form of
tobacco. COSH recommends smokers to kick the bad habit
completely and not to use e-cigarettes or other tobacco
products that will also harm their health. Non-smokers are also
advised not to pick up these products.

E-cigarettes contain harmful substances that
cause health risks

Invented by a Chinese in 2003, e-cigarettes had a rapid growth
with hundredfold increase in global sales, especially in Europe
and the United States, over the past 10 years. E-cigarettes are
devices that do not burn or use tobacco but instead vaporize
a solution the user then inhales. The design is generally similar
to traditional cigarettes while some are produced in the
form of everyday items such as pens, USB memory sticks or
other shapes. With almost 8,000 flavours like fruits, soft drinks,
chocolate and mint, e-cigarettes are marketed as healthy and
trendy products, which pander to the curiosity of consumers,
in particular the youth.
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They can be found easily in shopping malls, boutiques,
consignment stores and fashion stores, as well as online
platforms like social media, group purchase website and online
specialty stores. Generally, no information and label on their
ingredients, chemicals contained and produced during heating
are provided, which may bring risk to the health of users. The
safety of e-cigarettes device is also in doubt. There were cases
of e-cigarettes explosion during using and charging.

COSH commissioned the Hong Kong Baptist University to
carry out a laboratory test on the components of thirteen
e-cigarettes in the market in 2015. Harmful chemicals including
formaldehyde, glycerin, polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons
(PAHs) and poly-brominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs) were
found. Formaldehyde and PAHs are known carcinogens while
PBDEs has been associated with thyroid hormone disruption
and reduction of fertility. It also affects fetal development and
can cause cancers. (Please refer to page 154 "COSH Report
No. 20" for details)
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The Thematic Household Survey Report No. 59 showed that
26% and 9.0% of primary school students and secondary
school students had ever used e-cigarettes respectively. On
the other hand, COSH commissioned the School of Public
Health of The University of Hong Kong to conduct the Tobacco
Control Policy-related Survey 2016 to monitor the prevalence of
e-cigarette use and measure public opinion on its ban in Hong
Kong. The survey found that 83.8% of respondents had heard
of e-cigarettes. Around one-third (31.1%) of them believed that
e-cigarettes were less addictive than conventional cigarettes.
Although only 2.6% of respondents had used e-cigarettes, the
rate (34.3%) among young people aged 15 to 29 years was
significantly higher than that of other people aged 30 years or
above. It was also found that the main reason for e-cigarette
use was not to aid smoking cessation and 43.5% of the users
did not know what they inhaled.

There is insufficient scientific evidence so far to support the
claim that e-cigarettes can help quit smoking. On the other
hand, there are foreign researches showing that smokers using
e-cigarettes to quit smoking will cause dual use of nicotine.
World Health Organization does not recognize e-cigarettes asa
legitimate tool for smoking cessation and expressed concerns
over the growing trend of e-cigarettes use.

According to the Pharmacy and Poisons Ordinance (Cap.
138), e-cigarettes
pharmaceutical products in Hong Kong. They have to comply
with the relevant requirements on safety, quality and efficacy
under the ordinance, and must be registered with the
Pharmacy and Poisons Board of Hong Kong before they can
be put up for sale or distribution in Hong Kong. In addition,
the Smoking (Public Health) Ordinance (Cap. 371) stipulates
that no person shall smoke or carry a lighted cigarette, cigar or
pipe in a no smoking area. Any person who smokes (including
e-cigarettes) in a statutory no smoking area commits an
offence and is subject to a fixed penalty of HK$1,500.

containing nicotine are considered
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COSH has been advocating the Government to enact a
total ban on e-cigarettes since 2015. We are pleased that the
Government had adopted our recommendation though the
date of enactment is to be scheduled. Public opinions on
the related measures were also collected. The results showed
that majority of respondents supported various regulatory
measures on e-cigarettes including banning sales to minors
(95.5%), restricting sale of all e-cigarettes with or without
nicotine (92.4%), requiring license for shops to sell e-cigarettes
(90.1%), banning use in no-smoking areas (85.5%), regulating
as conventional cigarettes (85.2%), banning promotion
and advertising (69.8%). Around half of the respondents
(48.1%) supported a total ban on e-cigarettes, including sale,
advertising, distribution, import and manufacturing. COSH
urges the Government and Legislative Council to enact the
total ban on e-cigarettes promptly in order to deter citizens,
especially youngsters from picking up e-cigarettes and the
smoking habit.

An hour of waterpipe smoking equivalents to
100 cigarettes

COSH also noticed that waterpipe smoking with diversified
flavours was offered by some restaurants in Hong Kong.
Waterpipe smoking is positioned as a trendy social
gathering among the youth and its adverse health effects
are underestimated. Waterpipe is a tobacco-smoking device
that originated from India and the Middle East. The tobacco
is heated to give off smoke which passes through a water
bowl and is inhaled by the smoker through the hose of the
waterpipe. As the smoke is believed to be purified through
water and mild due to the various fruit flavours, users may
feel at ease. In fact, it contains numerous toxicants including
tar, carbon monoxide, heavy metals and cancer-causing
chemicals.
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The School of Public Health of The University of Hong Kong
was commissioned by COSH to conduct a survey to understand
the perception of waterpipe among young adults. The survey
found that majority (94.5%) of respondents reporting awareness
of waterpipe. Around 304% and 13.4% of respondents had ever
used waterpipe and were current waterpipe smokers respectively.
Over one-fourth (274%) of respondents who have never smoked
waterpipe were susceptible to waterpipe smoking. Ranging from
0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), majority of respondents perceived
traditional cigarettes (9.05) were more harmful than waterpipe
(765); and traditional cigarettes (8.56) were more addictive than
waterpipe (6.84). This reflected that young adults underestimated
the adverse effects of waterpipe smoking to one’s health.

Due to the mode of smoking, including frequency of puffing,
depth of inhalation, and length of the smoking session, waterpipe
smokers may inhale more toxins than smoking cigarettes. A typical
one-hour waterpipe smoking session exposes the user to 100 to
200 times the volume of smoke inhaled from a single cigarette. It
also results in a carbon monoxide level at least four to five times
higher than the amount produced by one cigarette.

Waterpipe smokers are at risk for the same kind of diseases as are
caused by cigarette smoking, including oral cancer, lung cancer,
stomach cancer, cancer of the cesophagus, heart disease, reduced
lung function and decreased fertility. Waterpipe smoking delivers
the addictive drug nicotine and causes dependence. Charcoals
or embers are commonly used to heat tobacco during waterpipe
smoking. The combustion of them increases the health risks by
producing high levels of carbon monoxide, heavy metals and
hydrocarbons. Sharing a waterpipe mouthpiece also poses a
serious risk of transmission of communicable diseases, including
tuberculosis and hepatitis. According to the Smoking (Public
Health) Ordinance, anyone who smokes waterpipe in statutory
no smoking areas will also be prosecuted.
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Heat-not-burn tobacco products pose health
threat

Besides e-cigarettes and waterpipe, the tobacco industry
continues to explore new products, such as heat-not-burn
tobacco products which are claimed to be free of secondhand
smoke and containing 90% less toxins than conventional
Cigarettes as there is no combustion and burning. COSH
believed that it is just a promotional strategy of the tobacco
industry to conceal the harmful effects of the emerging
tobacco products. On the other hand, the local media
also reported that the device, as well as the duty-not-paid
tobacco sticks were sold in Hong Kong. Under the Dutiable
Commodities Ordinance, anyone involved in buying, selling or
dealing with illicit cigarettes commits an offence.

E-cigarettes and the emerging tobacco
products should be regulated

Prevention is always better than cure. COSH has been launching
comprehensive education and publicity programmes to
deter children and youth from picking up the smoking habit
and raise their awareness on the potential risks of e-cigarettes
and emerging tobacco products. They were introduced in
programmes like “School Interactive Education Theatre”, “Smoke-
free Youth Ambassador Leadership Training Programme” and
Health Talk for “Smoke-free Generation”. In the meantime, COSH
will continue to conduct surveys to investigate the usage of

these new products in Hong Kong.

It has been a decade since the last major amendment of the
Smoking (Public Health) Ordinance. Itis necessary to strengthen
and develop diversified measures to counter the tobacco
epidemic, including regulating e-cigarettes and new forms of
tobacco products. COSH also urgesthe Government to consider
formulating long-term and comprehensive tobacco control
policies, including raising tobacco tax substantially, expanding
no-smoking areas, increasing resources on education, publicity,
smoking cessation services and enforcement to further reduce
the smoking prevalence in Hong Kong.
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"Smoke-free Family" Publicity Campaign
"Let's join the Smoke-free Family"
Programme

Kick-off event of Smoke-free Publicity
Programme for World No Tobacco Day
The 7t" "Quit to Win" Smoke-free
Community Campaign Launch Ceremony
Hong Kong Smoke-free Leading
Company Awards 2016

The 7t" "Quit to Win" Smoke-free
Community Campaign

"Smoke-free Construction Force"
Programme

New APIs "Quit Now" and "Urge
Smokers to Quit"

Advocacy on Raising Tobacco Tax
"Enact Enlargement of Pictorial Health
Warnings Promptly" Press Conference
"Hong Kong Smoke-free Leading
Company Awards 2016" Awards
Presentation Ceremony

The 7t" "Quit to Win" Smoke-free
Community Campaign Prize
Presentation Ceremony
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Smoke-free Promotion Campaign of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club

2016 Kwai Chung Hospital Support

for World No Tobacco Day cum Prize
Presentation of the Smoke-free Fitness
Exercise Competition

Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion
Project 2016-2017

The 38t Asia Pacific Dental Congress
Standard Chartered Bank Well-being
June

Smoke-free Promotion Activities of
Link Asset Management Limited
Promotion Activities on Smoking
Cessation and Organ Donation
"Joyful@Healthy Workplace" Charter
Signing Ceremony

Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion
Project 2016-2017 Closing Ceremony
Central and Western District Health
Festival 2016/2017

CLPP Safety, Health & Environment (SHE)
Day 2016

"Open Day cum Spring Carnival" of the
New Voice Club of Hong Kong
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Education and Youth Programmes

BAEHEIEE Youth Education Programmes

2016/4 - 2017/3 RSB HTH ] R E B Health Talks for "Smoke-free New
Generation"

2016/7 - 2017/3 IS DE A EMTIBRETE12016-2017 Smoke-free Youth Ambassador
Leadership Training Programme
2016-2017

2016/10 - 2017/3 BREBH A KEBIS [HEEHE | School Interactive Education Theatre
"Smoke-free Alliance"

2017/3/7 [ &S D F AR BRETE]12016-2017) "Smoke-free Youth Ambassador

HREELNES Leadership Training Programme

2016- 2017" Award Presentation
Ceremony

BB R A EEBEE Liaison with Academia and Community
2016/5/26, BBREEIEEFRIE HKU School of Nursing -
11/1 & 11/3 Nursing Programmes
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Tobacco Free Cities - China Tobacco
Control Partnership Program Training
Workshop

The 8t Cross-Strait Conference on
Tobacco Control

The 9" International Council of

Nurses (ICN) International Nursing
Practitioner / Advanced Practice
Nursing (INP/APN) Network Conference
The 11th Asia Pacific Conference on
Tobacco or Health

The 4th WHO Fellowship Programme on
Tobacco Control

ZEEE Visit

2016/11/25
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Tianjin Center for Disease Control and
Prevention
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“Smoke-free Family” Publicity Campaign

"Smoke-free Family” was the theme of COSH's publicity
programmes in 2016 to 2017, including “Let’s Join the Smoke-
free Family” Programme, the 7™ "Quit to Win" Smoke-free
Community Campaign, “Hong Kong Smoke-free Leading
Company Awards 2016" and “Smoke-free Youth Ambassador
Leadership Training Programme 2016-2017". From May 2016
to March 2017, COSH also collaborated with Radio 2 of Radio
Television Hong Kong (RTHK?2) to create a positive atmosphere
for smoking cessation in the community, urge smokers to quit
smoking and invite the public to join the “Smoke-free Family”.
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A theme song, "Give Up” was produced by musician Mark
LUI, who had quitted smoking and performed by Alex FONG,
Smoke-free Ambassador. The song was packaged as a love
story to attract attention and encourage the audience to give
up the bad habits which are harmful to oneself, for example
smoking and live a healthy smoke-free lifestyle.

A series of promotions were also produced and launched
by RTHK2, including 14 episodes of on-air promos in the
programme “60 seconds for Liberal Studies” to enhance smoke-
free knowledge of the public. Besides, eight female artists were
invited to share the benefits of living a smoke-free lifestyle in the
programme “Curiouser & Curiouser”, including Yumiko CHENG,
Deanie IP, Elena KONG, Josephine KOO, Victoria LAM, Rain LI,
Candy LO and Linda WONG. Corresponding videos were also
uploaded to RTHK2's welbsite and mobile applications.
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“Let’s join the Smoke-free Family” Programme

World Health Organization designates 31 May as World No
Tobacco Day every year in order to raise public awareness on
smoking hazards around the world. COSH organized various
publicity activities for World No Tobacco Day 2016 with the
aim to call upon every member in the community to join the
"Smoke-free Family”. A set of keyarts was designed by local
artist, Nothing Serious to share how to support our family
members, friends, colleagues and lovers to quit smoking. Over
5,000 citizens joined the “Smoke-free Family” through the
online platform and pledged to adopt a smoke-free lifestyle,
as well as encourage smokers to kick the habit.

Kick-off Event

The kick-off event of the programme was held on 31 May
2016 at Metro City Plaza I, Tseung Kwan O to introduce the
programme’s details and invite the public to join the Smoke-
free Family. Officiating guests included Prof Sophia CHAN,
Under Secretary for Food and Health, Dr Constance CHAN,
Director of Health, CHAN Yiu-wah, Assistant Director (Radio &
Corporate Programming), Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of
Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public
Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong,
Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman, Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-
chairman and Alex FONG, Smoke-free Ambassador.
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Lucky Draw Promotion on Facebook

To further promote a smoke-free living, a lucky draw promotion
was held from 30 May to 12 June 2016 on Facebook which
encouraged more than 1,400 citizens to join the “Smoke-free
Family” and disseminated the smoke-free messages among
their network through social media.

Street Promotion

Street promotion activities were organized in May and June
2016 to invite the public to join the “Smoke-free Family”. A
whiteboard designed by Nothing Serious was distributed
as souvenir for the participants to write down messages to
support smokers to quit smoking.

Quit Tips Keyart Design Competition

The "Quit Tips Keyart Design Competition” was organized
from 1 October to 9 December 2016 to encourage the youth
to help construct a smoke-free environment with their design
talent. Local secondary school students and teenagers aged
11 to 18 were invited to join the competition through their
schools, youth centres and uniform groups.

The competition received overwhelming response and
attracted more than 1,800 entries from over 50 secondary
schools. Participants created the quit tips keyart with a slogan
of less than 15 words to motivate and help smokers kick the
habit and join the “Smoke-free Family”. The judging panel
selected the champion, first runner-up, second runner-up
and ten outstanding entries based on the delivery of smoke-
free messages, creativity and aesthetic appeal. Winners were
awarded a trophy and book voucher. Besides, the school
with the most entries received the "Most Active Participating
School Award”. All awards were presented in the “Smoke-free
Youth Ambassador Leadership Training Programme 2016-2017
Award Presentation Ceremony” on 7 March 2017.
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BREENT: Winner List:
BE:-HEMBEGROBTE - TR Champion: Hong Kong Weaving Mills Association Chu Shek
DECHEBERMNBMPE - HFEHE Lun Secondary School - DING Jinru
FERFHEBANER - EFH First runner-up: Yan Chai Hospital Lim Por Yen Secondary
School - SO Yan Ki
BERZHREIDER): Second runner-up: Shung Tak Catholic English College -
- BRBHMEGEZERE _PE - FJ0H TSANG Hin Ki Hinky
-BEREFHMEEEZERE_HE - ELE
-BEEeRBHME . TRY Merits (in alphabetical order):
-ERERETE - FFn + HKTA The Yuen Yuen Institute No.2 Secondary School -
-BRBLTHE - SRAM LEE Man Ki
HEPIREHFE - R « HKTA The Yuen Yuen Institute No.2 Secondary School -
-HRE=[REHL TS - TES LUK Sum Yin, Samantha
RE=[rFFHHLSHE - REE - Jockey Club Ti-I College - LEE Chui Kiu
-EEE - TR « Jockey Club Ti-I College - SIU Chin Wan
EEER - TUE » St Catharine’s School for Girls - CHEUNG Wing Lam
» Tuen Mun Catholic Secondary School - LEUNG Pearlie
RIRGSHEBRANE : ASREEPE + TWGHs Lee Ching Dea Memorial College - LI Hiu Ching

* TWGHs Lee Ching Dea Memorial College - TSUI Fung Ha
+ United Christian College - KONG Lok Yung
- United Christian College - LI Hung Pui

The Most Active Participating School Award:
FDBWA Szeto Ho Secondary School

75, E Champion 20 ® First runner-up ZE Second runner-up
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The 7th “Quit to Win” Smoke-free
Community Campaign

COSH has been organizing the “Quit to Win" Contest since
2009 to provide an alternative platform to motivate and assist
smokers in quitting smoking, in addition to cessation clinics.
The contest recruited over 1,000 smokers to kick the habit and
spread smoke-free messages to more than 20,000 citizens
each year.

In order to create a supportive social atmosphere for smoking
cessation and enhance community involvement in tobacco
control, COSH has solicited support from the 18 District
Councils and community organizations for launching the “Quit
to Win"” Smoke-free Community Campaign since 2012. A series
of district-based smoke-free promotion activities have been
organized at community level. The campaign also comprises
media promotion, smoking cessation counseling and scientific
research to maximize the impact. The 7t *Quit to Win” Smoke-
free Community Campaign was also supported by the Hong
Kong Jockey Club and Link Asset Management Limited.
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Launch Ceremony

The launch ceremony was held on 28 June 2016 at Domain
Mallin Yau Tong. Officiating guests included Dr Jeff LEE, Head
of Tobacco Control Office of the Department of Health, Prof
LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of Community Medicine & Sir
Robert Kotewall Professor in Public Health, School of Public
Health, The University of Hong Kong, Antonio KWONG,
COSH Chairman and Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-chairman.
Representatives of the District Councils and district working
partners also attended the ceremony to show their support.

The champion of the 6" “Quit to Win" Contest, WONG Wai-
kin, shared his successful experience and quit tips. Apart from
the support from family, he claimed that doing exercise was
crucial to a successful quit which can distract his attention
from smoking. After quitting, he got started in new hobbies,
such as hiking and jogging which broadened his social
network. Artists Alfred HUI, LEUNG Ka-ki, Mayanne MAK and
Roxanne TONG also shared the benefits of quitting smoking
and urged the public to live a smoke-free lifestyle through
interesting games. Smokers were motivated to join the "Quit
to Win" Contest and get rid of cigarettes.




1B X ME AR B B | AR AR

ZEQHBFEANEEEER R ARFEERRN
2016F6 16 A K& 27 B 22 9% [ 1% X0 Al /& 8
BHIGRRZ | - BIBIOAI R B[R B g
BE ZIRAKBAELHE UIRAMMEIEET
VER AUE 8 /) AN - Wi B b M B 1R FE [ AR
MBS EESEHEE - THRIZE  21EY
BB EURE -

REHBBRERAABLEBRE L SBRERE
FREEERESHR(DHBER)MAREHK
B BEREERSREIRIXREL &
EeXnERIBENRAREISMLEKRE
B ARERMEHESRFFHREH B
EIMEANRK ] LBENGRETEHELED
ZHKINBIERE - SRIZAGBEE /MRS S
EwmERNTIUET RAERE THEXRRK ]
AR WE —FER=FENBE RE
BERTI B RENITF -

SEE) Events -

Smoking Cessation Counseling Training

COSH collaborated with the School of Nursing and School of
Public Health of The University of Hong Kong to conduct two
sessions of Smoking Cessation Counseling Training on 16 and
27 June 2016. More than 90 staff and volunteers from district
working partners and university students joined the training
to enhance their tobacco control knowledge and smoking
cessation skills for conducting recruitment sessions and
smoke-free promotion. All participants were awarded with
certificates after completing the training.

Speakers included Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of
Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public
Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong,
Dr WANG Man-ping, Assistant Professor, School of Nursing, The
University of Hong Kong, Vienna LAI, COSH Executive Director,
Lawrence CHU, COSH Senior Project Manager and Anita CHAN,
an experienced smoking cessation counselor. Winners of the
previous "Quit to Win” Contests were also invited to share their
successful quit stories. Through seminar, group discussion,
role play and case studies, details of "Quit to Win" Smoke-free
Community Campaign, hazards of smoking, secondhand and
third-hand smoke, smoking cessation counseling skills and
project management skills were shared.
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District Recruitment and Smoke-free
Promotion Activities

COSH and the district working partners organized about 70
recruitment sessions and over 35 smoke-free promotion
activities in 18 districts from June to September 2016. More
than 1,300 smokers were recruited to join the cessation
contest and smoke-free messages were disseminated to over
40,000 members of public. More than 300 staff and volunteers
of the district working partners assisted in organizing different
smoke-free promotion activities, including health talks,
community promotion, carnivals, drawing competition, photo
shooting competition and smoke-free workshop across the
territory to increase public awareness on the “Quit to Win”
Contest and tobacco control.

hES1ER 4 District Working Partners

el B Z &R

Central & Western

Yuen Yuen v-Learn Women Centre

TRERESREATESERES
Steering Committee on Healthy City in the Central and Western District

BES B S im

Islands Hong Kong Outlying Islands Women's Association
JUBEM NEEREE

Kowloon City The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon

=5 ZEREHBRREREHE

Kwai Tsing Kwai Tsing Safe Community and Healthy City Association
B BB EE S GRS

Kwun Tong Windshield Charitable Foundation Social Services

BEREATBEELEY
Kwun Tong Healthy City Steering Committee

itlE BReESeRERRA

North

ARFG A

Jockey Club Yung Shing Lutheran Integrated Service Centre

ElZ2B et RGO

The Yuen Yuen Institute - Fanling Social Service Centre
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Windshield Charitable Foundation Sham Shui Po Social Services
HREREZEHE

Southern District Healthy and Safe Association

EEERELE

Hong Kong Southern District Women's Association
ANERERES

Tai Po District Residents Association

ANEBEFHE

Tai Po Youths Association

E2ETERFEHEEERES

Tsuen Wan Safe and Healthy Community Steering Committee
EBEHRZ B LUSRaTOFREF L

Shan King Integrated Children and Youth Services Centre of Seventh-day
Adventists

ShhE

Percy Club

EBfRESE TRYIRERERES

Food & Environmental Hygiene Committee, Wan Chai District Council
BEAERREZ WM

Wong Tai Sin District Healthy & Safe City

EERSE U0

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital

PN

Tin Shui Wai Women Association
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"Quit to Win" District Recruitment and Smoke-free Promotion Activities

BEf Date
2016/6/19

2016/6/25

2016/6/25 - 26

2016/6/26

2016/6/28

2016/7/2

2016/7/2

2016/7/3

2016/7/3

2016/7/7 & 9/10

2016/7/9

2016/7/9

2016/7/10 & 8/6

2016/7/15- 16

2016/7/16

2016/7/17 & 9/10

2016/7/17 & 9/17

2016/7/22 - 23

2016/7/23

#h & District
REL

Kowloon City

TUEA

Yuen Long

AL

Wong Tai Sin

[iig=1

Sai Kung

B

Kwun Tong

IR

Sham Shui Po

AL

Wong Tai Sin

KIH

Tai Po

W H

Sha Tin

bl

North

%5

Kwai Tsing

JHSEE

Yau Tsim Mong

B

Wan Chai

BE

Kwun Tong

R

Eastern

£

Tsuen Wan

BES

Islands

W H

Sha Tin

JCEA

Yuen Long

26 Venue

A X HES

Homantin Plaza

Rini5

Tin Shui Shopping Centre
R EES

Plaza Hollywood
%

Sheung Tak Plaza

AZREY

Domain Mall

TTIN B

Un Chau Estate

EE LD

Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre
==

Fu Shin Estate

REES

Wo Che Plaza

T ER%

Choi Yuen Plaza

BRI E%

Lei Muk Shue Shopping Centre
FRDEEERT

Queen Elizabeth Hospital
B

Paterson Street

BIEES

Kwun Tong Plaza
HETBE

Kut Shing Street, Chai Wan
SN

Citywalk

= RYP

Fu Tung Estate
B8&ILES

Ma On Shan Plaza

BE 50

Fortune Kingswood




2016/7/24

2016/7/24 & 9/10

2016/7/28 & 8/27

2016/7/31

2016/8/6 -7

2016/8/7

2016/8/13 - 14

2016/8/13 & 9/11

2016/8/14

2016/8/16

2016/8/19

2016/8/20

2016/8/20

2016/8/21 - 22

2016/8/25

2016/8/26

2016/8/27 - 28

2016/8/28

2016/8/28

2016/9/3

Southern

el

Central & Western

SHSSRE
Yau Tsim Mong
SHSSRE
Yau Tsim Mong
=AAL
Wong Tai Sin
Tsuen Wan
BE
Kwun Tong
B
Kwai Tsing
SHRSSAE
Yau Tsim Mong
IR
Sham Shui Po
Tsuen Wan
BES
Islands
WH
Sha Tin
!
Tuen Mun
RiF
Tai Po
L
Eastern

G
Kowloon City
[iii=)
Sai Kung
RIKEE
Sham Shui Po
JUEEM

Kowloon City

SEE) Events

BBFRERE

Chengtu Road, Aberdeen
Bibr 2

Theatre Lane

NEIRE]

Haiphong Road
AL

Argyle Centre

SR

Lok Fu Market
AEOEm

Tai Wo Hau Market
BERES

TBG Mall

LRES

Kwai Chung Plaza
AEES

Hoi Fu Shopping Centre
EEES

Lai Kok Shopping Centre
2EES

Tsuen Wan Plaza
RERAT

Yat Tung Market
EUERET R £ 8B

Prince of Wales Hospital
HAN.D.S

RITE™

Tai Yuen Market
N EYS

Siu Sai Wan Plaza
BRES

Oi Man Plaza

X tea)

Hau Tak Market
= 2%

Fu Cheong Shopping Centre
NEWES

Kowloon City Plaza
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2016/9/3
2016/9/4
2016/9/4
2016/9/8
2016/9/10
2016/9/11
2016/9/13 & 9/23
2016/9/14
2016/9/18
2016/9/20
2016/9/24
2016/9/24
2016/9/24

2016/9/30

TR

Yuen Long
%5

Kwai Tsing
KiE

Tai Po

i}

North
B

Kwun Tong
2]
Southern
B

Kwun Tong
el
Central & Western
KiE

Tai Po

TCEA

Yuen Long
%®E5

Kwai Tsing
Y

Tuen Mun
TCEA

Yuen Long
7

Wan Chai

BARRET

Long Ping Market

REES

Cheung Fat Plaza

A

Tai Wo Market

=P

Ka Fuk Estate

AR

Ping Shek Estate

RS AR B

Ap Lei Chau Estate
EEEAE NREEIIRP O
CIC Kowloon Bay Training Centre
FAR AR

Western District Community Centre
ARITTER

Tai Yuen Estate

BABE /5 b AR

The Spectra Construction Site
SKEELE

Tsing Yi Promenade

i

Ocean Walk

REELE

Tin Ching Estate

BREBEXRE

Canal Road Flyover
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“Quit to Win” Contest

The "Quit to Win" Contest encouraged smokers to quit
smoking through prizes. Eligible participants
smoking status assessment and brief smoking cessation
counseling by counselors during the recruitment sessions.
The smoking cessation counselors from the School of Nursing
and School of Public Health of The University of Hong Kong
would follow up the quit status of the participants and provide
advice and assistance by telephone interview at 1 month, 2
months, 3 months and 6 months after enrolment. They would
also be referred to their preferred smoking cessation service
providers. Participants who quitted successfully were invited

received

to undertake a biochemical validation at the 3-month follow-
up. Validated participants were eligible to join the lucky draw
or to be selected for an interview to win fabulous prizes.

Besides, the School of Nursing and School of Public Health
of The University of Hong Kong conducted a research study
to evaluate the effectiveness of specific smoking cessation
intervention as well as the campaign. According to the
preliminary results, the self-reported quit rate was 12.7% and
16.0% at 3-month and 6-month follow-up respectively.

Prize Presentation Ceremony

COSH held a prize presentation ceremony on 17 March 2017
to award the winners of the 7" “Quit to Win" Contest and
commend the 18 District Councils, district working partners
and various organizations for their tremendous support to
the Campaign. Honourable guests included Dr KO Wing-
man, Secretary for Food and Health, Dr Tina CHAN, Assistant
Director of Health (Special Health Services), Prof LAM Tai-hing,
Chair Professor of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall
Professor in Public Health, School of Public Health, The
University of Hong Kong, Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman,
Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-chairman and Vienna LAI, COSH
Executive Director.
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Winners were invited to share their successful quit stories at
the ceremony. Artists Catherine CHAU, Alex LAM and Kimman
WONG also encouraged smokers to ditch the habit for better
health, introduced the benefits of quitting and the smoking
cessation services in Hong Kong.

Winners of the 7™ “Quit to Win” Contest:

The champion, LIN Ngai-lui, had smoked for more than 20
years. He was influenced by peers in primary school to pick up
his first cigarette. He tried to get rid of tobacco when his son
was born but was unsuccessful. This time, Mr Lin determined to
kick the smoking habit with the aim to improve his respiratory
problems. More importantly, his son was hospitalized because
of trachea problem, and also suffered from other health
problems such as hearing impairment and attention deficit.
It made him feel guilty as he thought these problems were
caused by secondhand smoke exposure. Moreover, Mr Lin
would like to have one more child. Yet, his wife urged him to
quit smoking before planning for a baby. For his health and his
family, Mr Lin made up his mind to give up the addiction to
guarantee a smoke-free environment for the next generation.
After joining the 7™ *Quit to Win” Contest, he was referred to a
smoking cessation service provider and received professional
advice from counselor. Added to the support from his family,
he quitted smoking successfully and had a strong sense of

achievement, alongside with improvement on breathing and
less coughing.
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The first runner-up KWOK Wai-man had smoked for more
than 30 years. Mr Kwok had hard feeling when he was always
not around during family times due to smoking. Also, he was
aware of the importance of quitting when his close one had
lung cancer and passed away. Mr Kwok had participated in the
6t “Quit to Win" Contest but failed. This time, he learnt from
the past experience and succeeded. He suggested smokers to
kick start the journey of weaning off cigarettes by stopping the
one before sleeping and after waking up, while ditching other
habits such as drinking alcohol at the same time. He thanked
the regular text messages from the Campaign that backed
him up when his will was weak. The follow-up service of the
smoking cessation counselor also boosted his motivation to
quit. His family was very delighted towards his successful quit.

The second runner-up NG Ka-yan had spent more than 15
years as a smoker. Although the overall cigarette consumption
was not high, she sometimes smoked two to three packs per
day. Ms Ng stopped smoking when she was pregnant for the
first time, but relapsed after her child was born due to the
misconception that secondhand smoke would not affect the
health of the fetus and children. Except her eldest son, her
children were either having trachea problem or allergic rhinitis.
She realized the harms of secondhand smoke on her children’s
health and determined to quit smoking so as to be a smoke-
free role model of her children. After quitting, Ms Ng had a
closer relationship and more time to spend with her children.

Campaign Website: www.quittowin.hk
Facebook Page: www.facebook.com/quittowinhk

AN DL
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Hong Kong Smoke-free Leading Company
Awards 2016

To encourage businesses to promote smoke-free messages
to their stakeholders, including employees, customers and
the general public on a continuous basis, COSH has organized
the "Hong Kong Smoke-free Leading Company Awards” since
2011 to commemorate businesses that have demonstrated
commitment in advocating smoke-free culture and fostering
an all-win situation for employees, business sector and the
society. COSH, with full support of nearly 50 major commerce
chambers and associations in Hong Kong, organized the
"Hong Kong Smoke-free Leading Company Awards” together
with Occupational Safety and Health Council in 2016 aiming
to gather the business sector in building a smoke-free Hong
Kong.

COSH assisted businesses in setting smoke-free guidelines
and internal policies, organizing smoke-free activities and
providing different smoking cessation services to their
employees and stakeholders in collaboration with various
smoking cessation service providers to encourage smokers to
kick the habit.
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Dr KO Wing-man, Secretary for Food & Health was the
Honourable Patron of the Awards. An independent judging
panel was set up which comprised Antonio KWONG, COSH
Chairman, Bonnie YAU, Executive Director of Occupational
Safety and Health Council, Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of
Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public
Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong,
Dr Jeff LEE, Head of Tobacco Control Office, Department of
Health, Prof Patrick WONG, Chairman of Quit-Winners Club and
Prof Samuel WONG, Head of Division of Family Medicine and
Primary Healthcare, The Jockey Club School of Public Health
and Primary Care, The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

The Awards received overwhelming response with over 480
applications in 2016, a significant increase of 40% as compared
with 2013, benefiting some 65,000 employees from a wide
variety of industries, including construction, retail, logistics,
property management and government departments.
Applications were assessed through preliminary and in-depth
assessments. The judging meeting was held on 1 December
2016 and concluded three companies to receive the Triple
Gold Awards for their continuous commitment; ten companies
to receive the Gold Awards, and one of them also received
the Most Creative Smoke-free Policy Award for its innovative
smoke-free initiatives; nine companies to receive the Silver
Awards and over 450 companies to receive the Certificates of
Merit for their support to smoke-free culture. (Please refer to
page 140 for the Awards list)
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“Smoke-free Construction Force” Programme

COSH also tailored programme for industry with high smoking
prevalence to promote smoke-free culture and encourage
smoking cessation.Accordingtothe Surveyonthe Occupational
Safety and Health of Construction Workers, around 45 percent
of construction workers smoked regularly and a quarter of
them smoked at work. The survey also found that the injury
rate of smokers was higher than that of non-smokers. COSH
launched the “Smoke-free Construction Force” Programme
with full support of Construction Industry Council, Hong Kong
Construction Association, Hong Kong Construction Industry
Employees General Union and Hong Kong General Building
Contractors Association to spread smoke-free messages
through tailored health talks and promotion collaterals, as well
as provide smoking cessation support among the construction
industry. More than 40 construction companies and sites
participated in the programme, reaching over 16,000 workers.

Awards Presentation Ceremony

Co-organized with Radio 2 of Radio Television Hong Kong, the
awards presentation ceremony was held on 27 February 2017
at Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre. Officiating
guests included Prof Sophia CHAN, Under Secretary for Food
and Health, Dr Cindy LAI, Deputy Director of Health, CHAN Yiu-
wah, Acting Deputy Director of Broadcasting (Programmes),
Bonnie YAU, Executive Director of Occupational Safety
and Health Council, Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of
Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public
Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong,
Dr Jeff LEE, Head of Tobacco Control Office, Department of
Health, Prof Patrick WONG, Chairman of Quit-Winners Club,
Prof Samuel WONG, Head of Division of Family Medicine
and Primary Healthcare, The Jockey Club School of Public
Health and Primary Care, The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman, Yolanda NG, COSH
Vice-chairman and Smoke-free Ambassadors Alex FONG and
Albert AU.
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Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman remarked that it was
very encouraging to see more and more businesses valued
the health of their employees and the general public. Many
innovative, diverse and effective smoke-free measures were
implemented to promote the smoke-free lifestyle through
various ways and networks.

A wide variety of smoke-free measures were adopted by
the award-winning companies which effectively created a
supportive atmosphere for smoking cessation, eg World No
Tobacco Day promotion activity, smoking cessation reward
scheme, smoking cessation support group and smoke-free
corner to gather co-workers’ support for quitters.

Smoke-free Ambassador Alex FONG shared the benefits of
smoke-free living at the ceremony while Albert AU and singer
Phil LAM encouraged quitters to enjoy music in order to get
rid of the craving for smoking. Besides, Hong Kong Guoshu
Association promoted a healthy smoke-free lifestyle by martial
art performance and stretching exercise demonstration.

Awards Website: www.smokefreeleadingcompany.hk
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New APIs “Quit Now” and
“Urge Smokers to Quit”

In recent years, COSH produced a series of Announcement of
Public Interest (APIs) under the theme of “Quit Smoking” which
received wide public support. Two new APIs titled “Quit Now”
and "Urge Smokers to Quit” were launched in September 2016
to motivate more smokers to say no to tobacco and encourage
family and friends to support smokers to build a healthy lifestyle
and strive for a smoke-free Hong Kong.

API"Quit Now" aimed to remind smokers to protect themselves,
their families and friends from the hazards of smoking and
secondhand smoke by quitting smoking. APl “Urge Smokers
to Quit” targeted female smokers who smoke mainly due to
emotional problems and stress. Their family and friends can
help them relieve stress and get rid of the negative emotion,
as well as support them to kick the habit.
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Advocacy on Raising Tobacco Tax

World Health Organization (WHO) reiterates that raising
tobacco tax to more than 75% of the retail price of tobacco
products is the single most effective tobacco control
intervention, which can effectively lower the smoking
prevalence and prevent youth from starting smoking. Over 30
countries have raised tobacco tax to more than 75% of the
retail price, and over 50 countries to more than 70%. Tobacco
tax in Hong Kong accounts for about 67% of the cigarette
price which is below WHO's recommendation.

According to the “Tobacco Control Policy-related Survey 2016
conducted by COSH, majority of the citizens (76.3%) supported
an increase in tobacco tax annually, in which almost 50%
thought that the increment should be equivalent to or higher
than the inflation rate in order to maintain the pricing effect
on the demand of tobacco products. The respondents also
opined that cigarette retail price should be set at HK$168 per
pack on average, which was almost three times higher than
the current retail price (retail price of the major brands in 2016
was around HKS57 per pack). Current smokers even thought
that the price should be increased to HK$199 on average to
effectively motivate smokers to quit. (For details of survey
results, please refer to page 95)

The survey findings reflected that there was huge capacity for
tobacco tax increment. In view of this, COSH, together with 49
organizations, sent an open letter to the Financial Secretary
in January 2017 to urge the Government to raise tobacco tax
by 100% in 2017-2018 fiscal year and formulate a long-term
policy on raising tobacco tax to maintain the price effect on
the demand of tobacco products. COSH also recommended
the Government to implement a multi-pronged approach
in tobacco control, including strengthening education and
publicity, legislations, enhanced smoking cessation services
and enforcement to protect public health.

COSH was disappointed that the tobacco tax was frozen again
in 2017-2018 fiscal year. But relevant media coverage aroused
public awareness on this issue.
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“Enact Enlargement of Pictorial Health
Warnings Promptly” Press Conference

The Government briefed the legislative proposals to strengthen
tobacco control on 18 May 2015, including enlarging the size
of pictorial health warnings to at least 85% of the two largest
surfaces of the packet, increasing the number of forms of
health warning from six to twelve and adding the quitline 1833
183. The date of enactment was yet to be scheduled. COSH
hosted a press conference on 16 January 2017 to advocate
the Government and Legislative Council for enacting the
enlargement of pictorial health warnings promptly. Speakers
included Prof Judith MACKAY, Director, Asian Consultancy
on Tobacco Control and Senior Policy Advisor, World Health
Organization, Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of Community
Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public Health,
School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong, Antonio
KWONG, COSH Chairman and Vienna LAI, COSH Executive
Director.

Antonio KWONG said, “Results from survey conducted by
COSH and two rounds of public consultations organized by
the Legislative Council showed that majority of citizens and
organizations supported the enlargement of pictorial health
warnings to 85%. The Government and Legislative Council
should take full account of public opinions and enact the
proposed tobacco control measure as soon as possible.”

The Legislative Council collected views of the public and
held special meetings on the enlargement of pictorial health
warnings twice. Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman also
attended the meetings to remark the stance of COSH. Among
the hundred submissions received in July 2015 regarding the
increase in the size of pictorial health warnings, more than
80% supported. Besides, over 100 submissions were received
for the special meeting of Legislative Council Panel on Health
Services held on 17 January 2017, in which around 70% agreed
the proposed measure.
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The School of Public Health of The University of Hong Kong
was commissioned by COSH to carry out the "Tobacco Control
Policy-related Survey 2016". It was found that public support on
enhancing the pictorial health warnings was overwhelming,
79.5% of all respondents agreed to display more threatening
messages about the health risks of smoking. About 72.5% of all
respondents supported to increase the coverage of the health
warnings to 85% while about half of the current smokers also
supported. Majority of respondents opted for plain packaging
of cigarettes as well. In addition, COSH has collected over 26,500
signatures from citizens and organizations through street
counters and online platform supporting the enlargement of
pictorial health warnings since May 2015.

In recent years, many countries successfully introduced more
stringent measures to regulate tobacco packaging. Hong Kong
ranked the 72" in the world regarding the implementation
of pictorial health warning and was behind many developing
countries like Laos, Myanmar and Sri Lanka. World Health
Organization called for more countries to enlarge pictorial
warnings covering more than 85% and implement plain
packaging. “Get ready for plain packaging” was designated as
the theme of World No Tobacco Day 2016.

In view of the tobacco epidemic in Hong Kong and the
international tobacco control trend, COSH advocated the
Government and Legislative Councilors to take account of
public opinions and implement the enlargement of pictorial
health warnings as soon as possible in order to reduce the
attractiveness of tobacco, motivate more smokers to quit and
deter youth from trying the first cigarette.
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Smoke-free Promotion Campaign of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club

COSH collaborated with The Hong Kong Jockey Club to
organize diversified programmes to spread smoke-free
messages and encourage smoking cessation among the
general public. The Hong Kong Jockey Club set up exhibition
panels in April to June 2016, July 2016 and February to March
2017 to introduce smoking hazards, smoking cessation
methods and health risks of secondhand smoke to citizens.
Besides, body check including carbon monoxide breath test,
was provided to the public during December 2016 to March
2017, boosting the determination of smokers to quit smoking.

Smoke-free videos and posters of COSH were also displayed
at all branches across the territory starting from October
2016 aiming to promote smoke-free lifestyle. COSH educator
delivered a health talk to around 40 participants on 13 January
2017 at Tin Shui Wai branch to explain the fallacy of smoking
and smoking cessation methods.
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2016 Kwai Chung Hospital Support for

World No Tobacco Day cum Prize Presentation
of the Smoke-free Fitness Exercise
Competition

Kwai Chung Hospital organized the “2016 Kwai Chung Hospital
Support for World No Tobacco Day cum Prize Presentation of
the Smoke-free Fitness Exercise Competition” on 25 May 2016
to commend the staff, patients and their family members for
designing the fitness exercise to deliver smoke-free messages.

Vienna LAI, COSH Executive Director was invited to share tips
on smoking cessation, latest trend of tobacco control and
information of smoking hazards with the participants. Other
guests included Prof Sophia CHAN, Under Secretary for Food
and Health, Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of Community
Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public Health,
School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong and
Dr Jeff LEE, Head, Tobacco Control Office, Department of
Health.
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Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion Project
2016-2017

Elder smokers generally smoke for years and have heavy
nicotine dependence. Due to the misconceptions about
smoking and quitting, their intention to quit is low. According
to the Thematic Household Survey Report No. 59 released by
the Census and Statistics Department, among the 641,300 daily
smokers in Hong Kong, 21.4% aged 60 years or above. In order
to cope with the needs of elder smokers, COSH organized the
“Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion Project 2016-2017". In
collaboration with elderly centres, a series of activities,including
health talks, “Smoke-free” workshops, radio promotions and
community promotions were organized to raise awareness on
smoking hazards, clarify the misconceptions about smoking
cessation and encourage elder smokers to quit.

Health Talks

From June 2016 to March 2017, COSH conducted over 40
sessions of health talks at elderly centres across the territory.
Through an interactive and interesting approach, the benefits
of being smoke-free and the importance of smoking cessation
were promoted to more than 2,400 elderlies. They were also
encouraged to spread the smoke-free messages to their family
and friends.

III

“Smoke-free Doll” Workshops

From August to September 2016, COSH visited 10 elderly
centres and organized the “Smoke-free Doll” Workshops for
more than 500 elderlies. The “Smoke-free Doll” symbolized
their wish for a smoke-free environment and encouragement
to their family and friends to kick the smoking habit as soon
as possible.
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Radio Promotions

COSH collaborated with Commercial Radio to produce five
radio segments to spread the smoke-free messages to the
general public from October to November 2016. Artists Bowie
WU, Helena LAW and Maria CORDERO, as well as winners of
the “Quit to Win" Contest WONG Wai-kin and CHEUNG Kam-
hon, shared their quit stories and tips. A short drama was also
broadcasted in the radio programme “18/F Block C" to clear
the misconceptions of smoking cessation and advise smokers
to quit in an interesting way.

“Be Smoke-free for Good Fortune” Elderly Day

A publicity event “Be Smoke-free for Good Fortune” Elderly
Day was held on 27 October 2016 at Metro City Plaza Il, Tseung
Kwan O, to spread the smoke-free messages to the elderly as
well as the mass public. Officiating guests included Dr Jeff
LEE, Head of Tobacco Control Office, Department of Health,
Dr LAM Ching-choi, Chairman of Elderly Commission, Antonio
KWONG, COSH Chairman and Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-
chairman.
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Second runner-up of the 5t “Quit to Win” Contest, CHEUNG
Kam-hon, attended the event with his wife to share his
experience and the benefits of quitting. Prof LAM Tai-
hing, Chair Professor of Community Medicine & Sir Robert
Kotewall Professor in Public Health, School of Public Health,
The University of Hong Kong, cleared the misconception
of quitting and provided quit tips to the audience. Artists C
AllStar and Phil LAM further promoted a smoke-free lifestyle
through interactive games. Besides, “Smoke-free Dolls”
produced by the elderly were displayed. Elderly volunteers of
the New Territories West Elder Academies Cluster also joined
the Ceremony to cheer for the smokers who intended to quit.

Community Promotions

In order to raise the public awareness on smoke-free lifestyle
and support smokers to quit, street promotions were
organized on 5 and 6 November 2016 at Park Lane Shopper’s
Boulevard, Tsim Sha Tsui and public pavement of East Point
Road, Causeway Bay respectively. Volunteers from the New
Territories West Elder Academies Cluster were invited to
hand out the “Smoke-free Dolls” to the public. The activities
successfully distributed cessation information and pledge
cards to more than 100 smokers and disseminated smoke-free
messages to more than 4,000 members of the public.
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The 38th Asia Pacific Dental Congress

The Hong Kong Dental Association, in collaboration with the
Asia Pacific Dental Federation, hosted the 38" Asia Pacific
Dental Congress” on 17 to 19 June 2016 at the Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre. Antonio KWONG, COSH
Chairman, was invited to join the opening ceremony. COSH
also set up an information booth introducing the tobacco
control works in Hong Kong and COSH's education and
publicity programmes to enhance the collaboration with
dental professionals. Participants were encouraged to pledge
to support a smoke-free Hong Kong.

Standard Chartered Bank Well-being June

Invited by Standard Chartered Bank, COSH hosted an
interactive game booth at their "Well-being June” activity on
22 June 2016 with an aim to increase participants’ awareness
on smoking hazards and tobacco control works. The game
booth received enthusiastic response and reached around
200 staff. Participants were also invited to make a pledge and
join the "Smoke-free Family” by saying no to cigarette and
encouraging their family members, friends, colleagues and
neighbours to live a smoke-free lifestyle. Leaflets and smoking
cessation booklets were also distributed to encourage
participants to spread the smoke-free messages.
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Smoke-free Promotion Activities of Link Asset
Management Limited

COSH collaborated with Link Asset Management Limited
(Link) in June to September 2016 to encourage the public to
adopt a smoke-free healthy lifestyle. Promotion activities and
24 recruitment booths of the 7™ “Quit to Win” Contest were
organized in eight fresh markets and 11 shopping malls under
the management of Link to promote the benefits of smoking
cessation, encourage smokers to join the contest and call on
the non-smokers to support their family and friends to quit
smoking.

Promotion Activities on Smoking Cessation
and Organ Donation

COSH became a signatory of the “Organ Donation Promotion
Charter” launched by the Government in June 2016 to raise
the public awareness on organ donation. Colleagues and
other stakeholders were encouraged to register their wish to
donate organs. The culture of organ donation was also spread
in various smoke-free promotion activities of COSH.

For example, street promotions were held in Tin Shui Wai
and Causeway Bay on 24 September and 15 October 2016
respectively. Prof Sophia CHAN, Under Secretary for Food
and Health, Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-chairman and Vienna
LAI, COSH Executive Director distributed leaflets to citizens to
promote organ donation and smoking cessation in Causeway
Bay.
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SEED Events

Joyful@Healthy Workplace

Employee well-being tops the agenda of COSH. We signed the
"Joyful@Healthy Workplace Charter” and pledged to promote
physical and mental well-being in workplace with emphasis
on healthy eating, physical activity and mental well-being.

The "Joyful@Healthy Workplace” programme was launched by
the Department of Health and the Occupational Safety and
Health Council and joined by over 500 organizations. A series
of activities were organized to assist employers and employees
in creating a joyful and healthy working environment. Smoke-
free messages were also delivered. The Charter Signing
Ceremony was held on 3 October 2016 at D+Park in Tsuen Wan.

Central and Western District Health Festival
2016/2017

To enhance the community’s awareness on the importance
of health and to promote health education, the Steering
Committee on Healthy City in the Central and Western District
and the Central and Western District Office collaborated with
a number of government departments, local hospitals, clinics
and social service organizations to host the “Central and
Western District Health Festival 2016/2017" on 5 to 6 November
2016 at Sheung Wan Sports Centre.

Messages of disease prevention and healthcare, home safety
and personal hygiene were delivered through exhibitions,
counseling services, health talks, exercise demonstrations and
free body checks which successfully attracted hundreds of
participants.
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Lawrence CHU, COSH Senior Project Manager was invited
to join the opening ceremony. COSH also set up a booth to
enhance the local residents’ knowledge on smoking hazards in
an interactive way. The latest APIs were also broadcasted and
smoking cessation booklets were distributed to encourage
smokers to quit smoking and promote a smoke-free lifestyle.

CLPP Safety, Health and Environment (SHE)
Day 2016

CLP Power Hong Kong's annual event “Safety, Health &
Environment (SHE) Day” was successfully held on 5 November
2016 at Black Point Power Station, Tuen Mun. Over 5,000 staff
and their family joined the event. Through stage performance,
exhibition and game booths, participants’ awareness on
safety, health and environment were enhanced. COSH was
invited to host a game booth to introduce smoking hazards
in an interesting way. Smoke-free brochures and leaflets on
smoking cessation were also distributed, reaching over 1,000
participants.

“Open Day cum Spring Carnival” of the
New Voice Club of Hong Kong

The New Voice Club of Hong Kong assists laryngectomies
and laryngeal cancer patients in regaining their voice and
reintegrating into the community through promoting self-
help and mutual help spirit. The Club hosted an “Open Day
cum Spring Carnival”on 19 February 2017 at Shek Kip Mei Estate
to help the public understand their scope of services and
facilities. Health messages were delivered through diversified
programmes, including Chinese medical consultation, health
talks and body check.

COSH was invited to set up a game booth to propagate the
smoking hazards in an interesting way. Booklets were also
distributed to encourage smokers to kick the habit as soon
as possible in order to lower the risk of laryngeal cancer and
other diseases. Over 100 participants joined the carnival.
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Health Talks for “Smoke-free New Generation”

Educationis an essential part of tobacco control. Disseminating
smoke-free messages to the next generation at an early stage
can help them recognize the importance of a smoke-free
environment, deter them from lighting up the first cigarette
and motivate them to encourage family and friends to quit
smoking. Since 1991, COSH has organized health talks every
year in kindergartens, primary schools, secondary schools and
tertiary institutions across the territory to educate the children
and youth on smoking hazards.

During the school year 2016 to 2017, more than 100 health talks
were conducted, reaching over 20,000 students. The health
talks covered the harmful effects of smoking, secondhand
smoke and third-hand smoke, as well as the latest information
on tobacco control, such as tobacco control policy in
Hong Kong, existing smoking cessation services, trend of
e-cigarettes and marketing tactics of the tobacco industry.
COSH educators also introduced the works and programmes
of COSH. A question-and-answer session was included and
souvenirs were given to students to enhance their smoke-free

knowledge under a relaxing and interactive atmosphere.
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Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Leadership
Training Programme 2016-2017

COSH has been sparing no effort to educate the youngsters
on smoking hazards, encourage them to adopt a healthy
lifestyle and strive for a smoke-free Hong Kong. “Smoke-free
Youth Ambassador Leadership Training Programme” has been
organized annually since 2012 to instill knowledge of tobacco
control and smoking hazards in youngsters, provide training
on various skills, as well as sustain their pioneering role in
spreading smoke-free culture.

Over 1,700 Youth Ambassadors have been nurtured to take
the leading role in establishing a smoke-free environment
through the programme. Some 300 youngsters, aged 14 to
18, fromm more than 35 secondary schools, youth centres and
uniform groups enrolled for the 2016-2017 programme which
was recommended by the Education Bureau.

Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Leadership Training
Camp

COSH collaborated with the “Solar Project” of Radio 2 of Radio
Television Hong Kong (RTHK2) and invited DJ Alex LEE to share
tips on public speaking with the Ambassadors during the
briefing session in order to prepare them for disseminating
smoke-free messages to the public.
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Four 2-Day-1-Night leadership training camps were held
during the summer holiday in 2016 to equip the participants
with knowledge on smoking hazards and tobacco control
measures. Their skills on leadership, creative and critical
thinking, commmunication, problem solving, team building,
programme planning and smoking cessation counseling were
enhanced through diversified training activities. Around 20
participants from the “Solar Project” also joined the training
camp.

Smoke-free Programme in Schools and the Community

Between September and December 2016, the trained
Ambassadors applied their knowledge to initiate a record
high of more than 200 innovative activities to disseminate
the smoke-free messages in their family, schools and the
community. Having learnt from predecessors’ experiences,
the Youth Ambassadors successfully engaged over 40,000
citizens through a wide variety of community-based activities,
including inviting the public to sign up for the “Smoke-free
Family”, urging the Legislative Council and District Council
membersto make smoke-free pledges, conducting forced vital
capacity test for citizens at busy streets, busking and inviting
couples and newlyweds to make smoke-free promise, as well
as organizing activities in kindergartens, primary schools and
elderly centres.
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Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Alumni Programme

In order to sustain the Ambassadors’ pioneering role in
spreading smoke-free messages, they were encouraged to
join the “Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Alumni Programme”
after the training to continue their support to tobacco control
by attending sharing sessions, managing game booths and
exhibitions in the community and participating in other
publicity activities organized by COSH.

Award Presentation Ceremony

An award presentation ceremony was held on 7 March 2017
to commend the outstanding Ambassadors of the 2016-
2017 programme. Honourable guests included Eddie NG,
Secretary for Education, Dr Tina CHAN, Assistant Director of
Health (Special Health Services), Antonio KWONG, COSH
Chairman, Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-chairman and Christopher
YU, Chairman of COSH Education and Publicity Committee.

The Champion team from St Catharine's School for Girls
shared their tips and experience in organizing activities under
the theme of “Start Young for a Smoke-free Hong Kong” in
the ceremony. They launched a series of innovative activities
reaching over 3,600 citizens, which included exhibition,
game booths, orienteering competition and tongue twister
competition to instill knowledge of smoking hazards and
tobacco control in schoolmates in an interesting way.

Besides, they systematically sent letters to invite kindergartens
and primary schools in the district to participate in a series of
activities, such as slogan design competition and colouring
competition. In a joyful learning environment, children got to
know the importance of having a smoke-free healthy lifestyle
and refrained themselves from taking the first cigarette in the
future. The team also strived to cultivate smoke-free culture
in the community by inviting citizens to take photos to show
support to a smoke-free Hong Kong and providing forced vital
capacity test to disseminate information of smoking hazards
in Causeway Bay and Mongkok.
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Winner List:

Champion: St Catharine’s School for Girls

First runner-up: Lingnan Dr Chung Wing Kwong Memorial
Secondary School

Second runner-up: NT Heung Yee Kuk Yuen Long District
Secondary School (Team 1)

Outstanding Smoke-free Teams:

+ Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College

+ CMA Secondary School (Team 1)

+ Lok Sin Tong Wong Chung Ming Secondary School

- Pope Paul VI College (Team 1)

+ Pope Paul VI College (Team 4)

+ Queen’s College Old Boys' Association Secondary School
- SKH Kei Hau Secondary School

"Let’s join the Smoke-free Family” Campaign — The Most Active
Participating School Award: NT Heung Yee Kuk Yuen Long
District Secondary School

Programme Facebook Page:
www.facebook.com/SmokefreeYouthAmbassador




SEE) Events

EREBHBKIEES
r/\\\kﬁ HFm:.J

B1995F#E  ZE S —E HER R HEXHTE
GIE U [BRESHEKERS | EATENR
EREFEVERENELHENEHERZ— &
BEENFAEREENZ SEMBIERA—
BEVEELFRIEZ BISEEREBERE
#1311,800% 3% & - #81B480,000 42 4 [ ZKAM
S

BISAEREAETR UL FaRRE
BEBNBEETF L ERERMEBEPRH
g —FE - =FEREFENEE  THR
EHRRNER - FEZFIAEE THEEHE
RSB ATE %J%Hﬁﬁﬁg\k%ﬁﬂﬁﬁh

School Interactive Education Theatre
“Smoke-free Alliance”

The “School Interactive Education Theatre Programme” has
been one of COSH's major education and publicity programmes
to prevent youth smoking since 1995. Cooperating with schools
and local professional troupe, COSH encourages the children
and youngsters to promote a smoke-free lifestyle among their
family. About 1,800 performances were conducted, reaching
more than 480,000 students and teachers over the years.

Key messages of tobacco control are delivered along with
music, stage effects and interesting presentation. Through
the performance, students learn about the harmful effects
of smoking, secondhand smoke, third-hand smoke and
e-cigarette and receive positive messages such as fallacies
about smoking, say no to secondhand smoke, the benefits
of a smoke-free environment and ways to encourage family
members to kick the smoking habit. Parents are welcomed to
attend the performances.
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COSH launched a brand-new interactive drama titled “Smoke-
free Alliance” in collaboration with Chung Ying Theatre
in 2016-2017. The newly-added messages on e-cigarettes,
together with the marketing tactics of tobacco industry and
the importance of a smoke-free environment were promoted.
Special thanks were given to Prof LAM Tai-hing for being the
professional consultant of the musical. Over 90 performances
were delivered and over 22,000 students and teachers were
reached. The 2016-2017 programme was also recommended
by the Education Bureau.

The story was about Mr Luther, Chairman of Smoke-free
Alliance, called on cities to join the Alliance to build a smoke-
free environment. Madam Tobacco, Chairman of a tobacco
group, sent a troop to attack Mr Luther as she believed that the
Alliance would lead to a drop in her business. Mr Luther hurt
his head and lost all memory. He wandered in a Satellite City
whose economy was heavily relied on the manufacture and
sale of tobacco, and met CHING ching-yee who advocated
the city for joining the Smoke-free Alliance. She tried every
means to help Mr Luther restore his memory and finally the
Satellite City became part of the Alliance. The drama created
a favourable atmosphere for students to learn the hazards of
tobacco and they were determined to join the Smoke-free
Alliance.
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Over 600 students, teachers and guests attended the premiere
which was held at the Academic Community Hall, Hong
Kong Baptist University on 13 October 2016. Honourable
guests included Dr Tina CHAN, Assistant Director of Health
(Special Health Services), Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor
of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in
Public Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong
Kong, Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman and Yolanda NG,
COSH Vice-Chairman. The premiere was also supported by
Kwai Tsing District Council and Kwai Tsing Safe Community
and Healthy City Association. The programme began its tours
across the territory afterwards.

An interactive hotline, a designated website, bring-home
educational material and souvenirs were provided for
participants to sustain the impact of the programme. Through
the "Smoke-free T-shirt and Slogan Design Competition”,
students were encouraged to utilize the knowledge they
acquired in the drama to spread the smoke-free messages.

Programme webpage: www.educationtheatre.hk
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HKU School of Nursing — Nursing Programmes

School of Nursing of The University of Hong Kong endeavors
to provide professional nursing training. Courses on tobacco
control and smoking cessation are provided to their students.
The Schoolhasbeenalong-term partner of COSH in promoting
tobacco control and safeguarding the public health. COSH
was invited to be the guest speaker for their Bachelor and
Master programmes.

Lawrence CHU, COSH Senior Project Manager delivered a
presentation titled “Tobacco Control and Smoking Prevention
Programmes in Hong Kong” to about 25 students in the Master
of Nursing Programme on 26 May 2016. Tobacco control
measures in Hong Kong, as well as COSH's education and
publicity programmes and advocacy works were introduced.
Mr Chu also shared the loopholes and challenges of tobacco
control works in Hong Kong and COSH's role in striving for a
smoke-free Hong Kong.

On 1 and 3 November 2016, a presentation titled “Political
Action to Improve Public Health” was given to about 350
students in the Bachelor of Nursing Programme. Mr Chu
shared the works and achievements of COSH in building a
smoke-free Hong Kong over the years. He also introduced the
global trend of tobacco control and the challenges ahead for
Hong Kong in curbing tobacco use.
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Working with the Mass Media

BfEiE @éﬂ&?ﬁﬁ*z*{%/ﬁﬁj ﬁ'}_&({%i COSH maintains a close and longstanding relation with the

EHEEEE & :A—Eéﬁiﬁ% 1%?—;5% mass media, enabling the messages of tobacco control and
o *Jéiff%%%?fiﬂ_ﬂ%t&?'] a %@é}& COSH's promotion activities to penetrate all levels of society
EihiHeE 7 e R A o HLAh $ABA$FW7I effectively. COSH Secretariat regularly fields interviews and
DI T HFER T SR EEHEME enquiries from different newspapers, publications, television

and radio stations, as well as other media platforms. COSH
issued the following press releases to the media during the

year:
HEHA Date ER Press Release
2016/5/31 BIRERAAMA [EERKE ] Join the Smoke-free Family for your loved
ones
2016/6/28 [REARFmR ] BIET @2 The 7th "Quit to Win" Smoke-free
BRETN\BNIE/HERERE Community Campaign
Uniting the 18 districts for a smoke-free
Hong Kong
2016/10/3 BAEBFITBRERYEFERB R Open Letter to Secretary for Food and Health,
NI HKSAR Government
RBBIRRLEZEZE T FER Enact total ban on e-cigarettes and
BRES LWEEERER enlargement of pictorial health warnings
promptly
2016/10/13 BB B A B [ Premiere of Education Theatre Programme
PIAEREF A EEENT "Smoke-free Alliance"
Join hands in building a smoke-free city
2016/10/27 MEEEREC] 51812016-2017 Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion Project
BEERREFNH 2016-2017
"Be Smoke-free for Good Fortune" Elderly Day
2016/12/18 RBFEREEEAZER FHES Enact enlargement of pictorial health
BRETR warnings promptly
2017/1/16 LZESRBENREATRER COSH urges the Government to take full
BREEBANEB LNEEBRETR account of public opinions
Enact enlargement of pictorial health
warnings promptly
2017/1/17 BERRIE R R S0 COSH responds to the legislative proposal of
BAES EEERERNLEARZ the enlargement of pictorial health warnings
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Press Release

Open letter to Financial Secretary, HKSAR
Government

Raising tobacco tax by 100% to lower smoking
prevalence

COSH's response to the tobacco control
policies proposed by The Budget

Hong Kong Smoke-free Leading Company
Awards

Joint business efforts to build a smoke-free
Hong Kong

Smoke-free Youth Ambassadors sowed the
seeds of a smoke-free living in the community
The 7t "Quit to Win" Contest cum Smoke-free
Community Campaign Prize Presentation
Ceremony

COSH responds to the legislative proposal of
the enlargement of pictorial health warnings
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Tobacco Free Cities — China Tobacco Control
Partnership Program Training Workshop

The School of Public Health of the Georgia State University
organized the "China Tobacco Control Partnership Program" to
pushforward the smoke-freelegislationin five citiesin mainland
China, including Chengdu, Chongging, Wuhan, Xiamen and
Xian. A training workshop and site visit were conducted on 6
to 7 June 2016 in Hong Kong to introduce the achievements
of tobacco control in Hong Kong to the government officials
of the five cities.

The workshop's keynote speaker, Prof Judith MACKAY, Director,
Asian Consultancy on Tobacco Control, explained the global
tobacco control policies. Vienna LAI, COSH Executive Director
was invited to share COSH's education, publicity and policy
advocacy works with the participants in a presentation titled
“Mobilizing to Support for Smoke-free Laws". Other speakers
included Prof Sophia CHAN, Under Secretary for Food and
Health, Dr Jeff LEE, Head, Tobacco Control Office, Department
of Healthand DrHomerTSO, Honorary Consultant, Department
of Health.
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The 8th Cross-strait Conference on Tobacco
Control

To provide a platform to share experiences and strengthen
collaboration on tobacco control issues in mainland China,
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Macau, Chinese Association on
Tobacco Control, COSH, John Tung Foundation of Taiwan,
Smoke-free & Healthy Life Association of Macau, Smoking
Abstention and Good Health Association of Macau and The
Macao Association of Medicals Volunteers conduct the "Cross-
Strait Conference on Tobacco Control" on a regular basis.
The 8™ "Cross-strait Conference on Tobacco Control" was co-
hosted by the Smoke-free & Healthy Life Association of Macau,
Smoking Abstention and Good Health Association of Macau
and The Macao Association of Medicals Volunteers on 23 to 24
June 2016 in Macau under the theme, "Promote Smoke-free
Culture for a Green Lifestyle”.

Representatives of COSH included Antonio KWONG, Chairman,
Yolanda NG, Vice-chairman, Vienna LAIl, Executive Director
and Secretariat staff. Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman was
awarded the “Contribution Award for Chinese in Tobacco
Control” to recognize his contributions and leadership in
tobacco control in Hong Kong over the years. Mr Kwong was
also invited to conduct a presentation on “Enact Total Ban on
E-cigarettes” to share the advocacy on banning e-cigarettes
in Hong Kong. Besides, Vienna LAl was invited to deliver
a presentation on “Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion
Project” to share COSH's experience in organizing smoke-free
publicity programmes targeting the elderly.
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COSH also set up an exhibition booth at the conference
to distribute COSH's publicity materials and introduce the
works of COSH in education, promotion and publicity. Over
100 tobacco control experts, academia, medical and health
professionals and representatives of non-governmental
organizations from cross-strait regions participated in the
conference to share their experiences on tobacco control and
prevention.

The 9th International Council of Nurses
International Nurse Practitioner / Advanced
Practice Nursing Network Conference

"The International Council of Nurses (ICN) International Nurse
Practitioner / Advanced Practice Nursing Network (INP/
APNN) Conference” is the leading biennial conference for
nurse practitioners, advanced practice nurses, clinical nurse
specialists, nurses, researchers, educators, policy makers,
and managers from all over the world. With the theme of
"Advancing nursing, advancing health: Emerging possibilities”,
the 9™ ICN INP/APNN Conference was conducted on 9 to 11
September 2016 in Hong Kong. The Conference was hosted
by The Hong Kong Academy of Nursing, and co-organized
by the College of Nursing Hong Kong and the World Health
Organization Collaborating Centre for Community Health
Services at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. COSH was
one of the supporting organizations.

Annie NG, COSH Senior Project Manager delivered a
presentation titled “The Nurses Initiatives on Tobacco Control
- Nurses’ commitment to promoting smoking cessation with
community involvement” to introduce the collaboration
between COSH and The Hong Kong Academy of Nursing in
engaging nurses in smoke-free promotion.




vl s A% A
B rt-EEimmxe

s Py L o e e

#__.E' -~ - .

BV Y.

™ T i
l y e f ¥ m ’
&= | . ™

Et-EDABREENRES S

[F+—fEmARESRERESZ ]| N20164F
9FA23BZE 258 L 77 #800%KHKE20

ZEBRNARER2E - 2F U DEREERS

RERFES | ATB FERUASTEIER
[ HIAEIRAK ) R T B R AOHERR - bA
TREE-

ZEgRERKREZNRREH KEREE
EESERS  BIXEMLIE RERRERL R
HERDEIWERBE ZEQRASHF
EE5AERRETR HhlR [BEMEKRSE
RUB—RBBRENRERSE] [ETESEE
ME—2EEE A ERARA | K& [ARIFTT
AAZMEHEERE] A2GENAETBHD
2EED R EEHREN T (RERR -

7

SEE) Events -

The 11th Asia Pacific Conference on Tobacco
or Health

"The 111" Asia Pacific Conference on Tobacco or Health" (APACT)
was held in Beijjing on 23 to 25 September 2016, attended by
over 800 delegates from some 20 countries. The theme of the
Conference was "Eradicate Tobacco Caused Hazards; Protect
the Right to Live Healthy” which provided a platform for
the delegates to exchange views and share experiences on
the implementation of Framework Convention on Tobacco
Control and tobacco control policies.

COSH sent a delegation comprising Antonio KWONG,
Chairman, Yolanda NG, Vice-chairman, Dr David SUN, Council
Member, Vienna LAI, Executive Director and Secretariat staff.
Three abstracts of COSH were selected for poster presentation,
including “Active Referral to Smoking Cessation Services in

"ou

Hong Kong ‘Quit to Win' Contest”, “E-cigarettes contain harmful
substances: total ban before too late” and “An innovative
approach to promote smoking cessation in women”. COSH's
advocacy on tobacco control policies in Hong Kong, as well

as its education and publicity programmes were introduced.
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The 4th WHO Fellowship Programme on
Tobacco Control

“The 41 WHO Fellowship Programme on Tobacco Control”
was organized by the World Health Organization (WHO)
Collaborating Centre for Smoking Cessation and Treatment of
Tobacco Dependence in Hong Kong from 14 to 18 November
2016. Besides Hong Kong participants, government officials
and representatives of non-governmental organizations in
tobacco control in the Western Pacific Region also attended
the programme, including Korea, Laos, mainland China,
Macau, Malaysia and Mongolia.

Under the structure of "MPOWER" laid down by WHO, the
programme strengthened the participants’ skills in tobacco
control and knowledge in implementing and evaluating
smoke-free measures through a comprehensive overview of
the latest tobacco control measures and experience sharing.
International and local tobacco control experts, including Prof
Simon CHAPMAN, Dr David MCFADDEN, Prof LAM Tai-hing,
Prof Judith MACKAY, Dr Homer TSO and Dr Tina CHAN, were
invited to share their expertise and the latest development on
tobacco control. In addition to presentations and workshops,
participants also visited various community-based smoking
cessation clinics for an in-depth understanding on the
smoking cessation services in Hong Kong.

Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman was invited to deliver a
presentation titled “Role of COSH in Advocacy, Education
and Publicity against Tobacco Use in Hong Kong” which
highlighted the experience and challenges of COSH on
education, publicity and policy advocacy over the years.
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Tianjin Center for Disease Control and
Prevention

Delegates of Tianjin Center for Disease Control and Prevention,
together with Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of Community
Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public Health,
School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong and his
students visited COSH on 25 November 2016.Vienna LAI, COSH
Executive Director and Annie NG, Senior Project Manager
delivered a presentation titled “"An Integrated Approach to
Construct a Smoke-free Hong Kong” and introduced COSH's
smoke-free education and publicity programmes.
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Resource Centre

COSH set up the Resource Centre to provide a variety of
information related to smoking and health. The public can
have access to the research reports, smoke-free promotional
and educational materials, leaflets and posters.

Collections of the Resource Centre include various local and
international periodicals, journals, books, research papers,
conference proceedings, reference materials and audio-
visual materials about tobacco hazards, passive smoking and
tobacco control legislation, etc.

Visitors of the Resource Centre include students, teachers,
parents, researchers, medical and healthcare practitioners,
tobacco control organizations, public health professionals and
overseas delegations.

Enquiry Hotline

A hotline system (852) 2838 8822 is set up to provide round-
the-clock enquiry service. The public can acquire information
about smoking and health, smoke-free legislations in Hong
Kong and details of COSH's programmes. The public can
also make enquiries, suggestions and complaints regarding
smoking or other related issues via the hotline.

The hotline served as a means to collect public opinions on
tobacco control policies which are useful for the formulation
of COSH's future work plan. Any feedback, complaints
or suggestions received will be responded instantly or/
and referred to relevant government departments and
organizations accordingly.




SEE) Events ¢

T2016F41BE 20173 A31BEHE  £8 Between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, COSH received
SHIPFITMRIIZLI06RER Wk iE @ 906 calls from the public making enquiries, suggestions or

BNBATR: complaints. The cases are categorized as below: N
[FES ¢E]

(EEZ:V] Categories No. of calls
EHRREERENER General enquiries for information related to smoking and health
BEREEED Legislation on tobacco control in Hong Kong 99
TS E R IR Quit methods and benefits 20
BB ARTS Smoking cessation services available in Hong Kong 12
IR JeE i R 2 8 Health hazards of smoking 1
fEEE M Contents of tobacco products 7
—FEHREROTE Health hazards of passive smoking 5
BAREETE Tobacco control in Hong Kong 4
HoAth I e B R R R Other information related to smoking and health 1
EHEESERREK General enquiries for COSH's information and services
REREHE R Children smoke-free education programmes 505
RELZESHENEEYR Application for COSH's education and publicity materials 79
LZEgAEEREHR Background and general information about COSH 72
ZESEERTEEREE COSH's publicity and community involvement projects 40
S Complaints
ETE R NE [E R E IR & Smoking in statutory no-smoking areas 46
SEREREEES Promotion and publicity of smoke-free programmes 1
#ZE Suggestions
HELEGHRBEEZRMNESR  Opinions on future direction of COSH in policy advocacy 1
HEEREFNER Opinions related to COSH's programmes 1
HIPETINER Opinions related to enforcement actions 1
HIEEBRNER Opinions related to tobacco control measures 1

HE Total 906
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COSH Website, Facebook and E-Newsletter

COSH website (www.smokefree.hk) is developed to enable
the public to keep updated on the activities of COSH as
well as the latest information related to smoking and health
via internet. Between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, COSH
website recorded over 383,500 page views. Pages such as
smoking hazards, e-cigarettes and methods of cessation had
higher views.

COSH website adopted the accessibility design to facilitate
different segments of the community including persons with
disability to access to tobacco control information and COSH's
services. The website attains the requirements of Gold Award
of "Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme” organized by the
Office of the Government Chief Information Officer and the
Equal Opportunities Commission, and was awarded the Triple
Gold Award.

E-Newsletter is also released regularly to report the
development of COSH and tobacco control. The main contents
include studies on smoking hazards and smoking cessation
in different countries, local and overseas tobacco control
measures and the latest activities of COSH. The general public
can subscribe the e-newsletter through COSH website.

As social media become popular and one of the key
information sources, a Facebook page “Smoke-free Family”
(www.facebook.com/smokefreefamily) has been set up to
interact with the public, as well as release news of COSH and
tobacco control. Members of public can also obtain the details
of COSH's programmes and join via the Facebook page.
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Tobacco Control Policy-related Survey 2016

To evaluate the effectiveness and investigate the views of
public on tobacco control policy in Hong Kong, COSH has
conducted Tobacco Control Policy-related Survey regularly
since 2012. It is a representative cross-sectional survey and
covers a wide scope of topics related to smoking and health,
including pattern of smoking, secondhand and third-hand
smoke exposure, opinions towards existing and future tobacco
control measures, etc.

The School of Public Health of The University of Hong Kong
was commissioned to conduct the Tobacco Control Policy-
related Survey 2016. Data was collected by Public Opinion
Programme of The University of Hong Kong via telephone
interview. From February to September 2016, the survey
successfully collected the information from the randomized
sample of 5,151 respondents aged 15 or above and spoke
Cantonese or Putonghua, including 1,734 never smokers, 1,714
ex-smokers and 1,703 current smokers. Respondents were
divided into different subsamples to answer different question
subsets. The final samples were weighted to the Hong Kong
population in 2016.
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Results of the survey are shown below:
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+ Exposure to secondhand smoke (SHS) in public places was
common. 69.7% of respondents reported that they had
exposed to SHS in at least 1 day in the past 7 days.

+ Among the respondents who had been to the respective
statutory no-smoking areas in the past 30 days, exposure
to SHS was reported in bars (53.1%), public transport
interchanges (404%), restaurants (15.0%) and shopping
malls (11.6%).

+ Many outdoor public places were not listed as smoke-free in
Hong Kong. Exposure to SHS in these areas was serious. Most
respondents reported SHS exposure at pedestrian walkways
(88.7%), seating-out areas of bars (80.8%), near doorways of
buildings (65.7%), seating-out areas of restaurants (64.8%)
and public transport stops (58.7%) in the past 30 days.

-+ Over one-third (35.6%) of respondents reported exposure to
third-hand smoke in at least 1 day in the past 7 days. Streets
(14.6%) was the most common place, followed by inside
public transport (11.3%) and workplaces (7.0%).
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Extension of smoke-free areas

+ Nearly half (49.8%) of respondents thought that the current
smoke-free legislation was adequate, while 39.7% did not
think so. Overall, respondents supported to extend no-
smoking area to public transport stops (91.5%), public areas
of the residential buildings (81.5%), pedestrian walkways
(81.4%), busy streets (79.4%), within three metres of doorways
of office buildings (76.1%), seating-out areas of restaurants
(68.1%), all public outdoor places (62.6%) and seating-out
areas of bars (56.4%).

+ Respondents overwhelmingly supported to ban smoking in
the venue where children are present, including in private
vehicles (86.4%), all public areas (83.3%) and home (75.2%).

- Majority (82.5%) of respondents supported that the person-
in-charge should be liable and penalized for smoking
offense in smoke-free premises under their management.

+ Over 70% (70.6%) of respondents agreed that the
Government should legislate to ban smoking while walking
on the streets.
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Regulations on cigarette packs

+ Majority (80.1%) of current smokers had noticed the pictorial

health warnings (PHW) on cigarette packs in the past 30
days, which was much higher than ex-smokers (35.1%) and
never smokers (30.1%).

+ Among the current smokers who noticed the PHW, 43.4%

would think of the risks of smoking, 31.4% would think of
quitting smoking and 11.2% would stop to light a cigarette.
Thefindings showed the existing PHWs were able to motivate
the quit intention but the effectiveness was diminishing.

+ Most (79.5%) respondents agreed that the PHW should be

clearer and more threatening about the hazards of smoking.
Over two-thirds (69.9%) of respondents agreed to rotate the
PHW regularly.

+ Over 70% (72.5%) of respondents agreed to enlarge the size

of the PHW to 85% of the cigarette pack area, which was also
supported by nearly half (45.3%) of current smokers.

- Plain packaging standardizes and simplifies the packaging of

tobacco products. All forms of tobacco branding should be
labeled according to the government prescriptions and in
simple and plain format. Trademarks, graphics and logos are
not allowed on cigarette packs, except for the brand name
that is displayed in a standard font, colour and location on
the package. In Australia, smoking prevalence has declined
since the implementation of the unprecedented plain
packaging in December 2012. In Hong Kong, most (79.2%)
respondents supported the Government to adopt plain
packaging. Nearly half (48.5%) of current smokers also
supported.
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Tobacco advertising and promotion

- Despite tobacco advertising, promotion and sponsorship
have been banned in Hong Kong, 28.8% of all respondents
said that they had noticed advertisements or signs
promoting cigarettes in the past 30 days.

- Over half (59.1%) of respondents had noticed the display of
tobacco products at points of sale in the past 30 days.

- Most (69.0%) respondents thought that the display of
tobacco products was a kind of cigarette advertisement and
promotion. More than half (59.0%) agreed to ban the display
of tobacco products at points of sale.

- Of all respondents, 604% thought that brand extension,
which means the use of cigarette brand names and logos
for other products such as clothing, should not be allowed.

-+ Majority (64.2%) of respondents reported that they had seen
smoking scenes in movies, TV shows or internet in the past
30 days.

Tobacco tax

+ Most (76.3%) of all respondents supported the Government
to raise tobacco tax annually, in which 51.8% thought that
the rate of increment should be equivalent to or greater
than the inflation rate.

- More than half (53.8%) of all respondents agreed that
cigarette price should be increased to help smokers quit
smoking and it was supported by half (50.7%) of current
smokers. Overall, the respondents suggested that the retail
price of a pack of cigarettes should set at HK$ 168 on average
to effectively motivate smokers to kick the habit. Current
smokers even thought that it should be HK$199.

+ Among current smokers, 44.3% and 38.3% said that they
would reduce cigarette consumption by half and quit
smoking respectively if cigarette price is increased.
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E-cigarettes
+ Most respondents (83.8%) had heard about e-cigarettes.

- About 2.6% of respondents had ever used e-cigarettes. The
most common reasons for them to try e-cigarettes were
‘curiosity” (61.8%), “it can help quit smoking” (17.1%) and
"gifts from others” (14.6%).

« Over one-third (37.5%) of respondents said that the
e-cigarettes they bought contained
another one-third (36.5%) reported their e-cigarettes were
nicotine-free.

nicotine, while

- Ofall respondents, 33.0% reported that there was ingredient
label on e-cigarettes whereas nearly half (43.5%) reported
that there was not.

+ More than half (56.0%) of respondents did not think
e-cigarettes could help quit smoking and 30.0% were not
sure about it. Only 14.0% thought that e-cigarettes could
help quit smoking.

- Different regulatory measures for e-cigarettes were
supported by the majority of respondents, including
banning sales to people under 18 years old (95.5%),
restricting sale regardless of containing nicotine or not
(92.4%), requiring license for shops to sell e-cigarettes
(90.1%), banning use in smoke-free areas (85.5%), regulating
as traditional cigarettes (85.2%), and banning promotion
and advertising (69.8%). Nearly half (48.1%) supported a
total ban on e-cigarettes.
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Opinions on future tobacco control policies

+ A majority (79.6%) agreed to increase the legal age for
purchasing cigarettes from the current 18 to 21 years old,
and it was agreed by 61.3% of current smokers.

+ More than half (53.3%) of respondents agreed that children
borninand after 2010 should never have access to cigarettes.

- Nearly two-thirds of respondents supported a total ban on
tobacco sale (66.1%) and total ban of smoking (66.8%) in
Hong Kong. The measures were also supported by 42.3%
and 40.1% of current smokers respectively.

+ Majority (62.8%) of all respondents agreed to ban smoking if
smoking prevalence in Hong Kong decreases to 5% or lower.

+ It has been 10 years since the last significant update on
Smoking (Public Health) Ordinance in 2007. Majority (77.7%)
of respondents thought that the Government should carry
out another amendment on the ordinance.

To advocate for appropriate measures and raise public
awareness duly, COSH has released the preliminary findings of
specific topics, eg regulations on cigarette packs and tobacco
tax, in different occasions. Some of the other findings will also
be extracted for further analysis and be disseminated in the
form of report.
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Aims and Strategies

To uphold sustainable development, COSH devises internal
and external strategies to promote a sense of responsibility
regarding environmental protection. To achieve this, COSH has
adopted the following environmentally friendly policies:

® Enhance efficiency of energy consumption;
® Reduce paper consumption;
® Reduce waste and recycle; and

® Enhance awareness on environmental protection.

Environmental Protection Strategies

Enhance Efficiency of Energy Consumption

The Secretariat conserves energy by ensuring that staff
members switch off lights, air-conditioners, computers, the
monitors of computer, photocopiers, printers and other
electrical appliances immediately after use.

Energy efficiency is one of the considerations in purchasing
electrical appliances. IT equipment with automatic energy
saving functions have also been used. Instead of using
traditional light bulbs, COSH has started using compact
fluorescent lamps.

Reduce Paper Consumption

To disseminate updated smoke-free information to the public,
promotional materials such as posters, leaflets and brochures
are produced. COSH also maintains frequent communications
with the community and government departments. To reduce
the consumption of paper, the following measures are in place:

e Use of e-mail and intranet for internal and external
communication and transfer of document instead of
memorandums, letters and hardcopies, where possible;
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e Utilization of electronic-fax system and electronic document
management system to reduce the amount of printing;

® Reduction ofthesize and quantity of the printed promotional
materials and use of environmentally friendly paper;

® Most of the tobacco control information, promotional
materials and publications have been uploaded to COSH
website for public access in order to reduce the demand of
hardcopies;

® Use of "Print Preview" function to check the layout and style
of document before printing to avoid wastage; and

® Use of both sides of paper to avoid wastage.

Reduce Waste and Recycle

COSH supports waste reduction and recycling and joins
the “Computer and Communication Products Recycling
Programme”
Department. The unserviceable computers and computer
accessories are delivered for recycling and disposal. In addition,

launched by the Environmental Protection

recyclable printer toner cartridges have been used.

Unwanted papers such as drafts of documents or documents
with printing errors have been collected for recycling. Recycling
boxes have been placed at convenient locations in the office
to encourage staff members to recycle waste paper.

Enhance Awareness on Environmental Protection

Staff have been informed on the aims and reminded to comply
with the green measures via staff meetings, email reminders
and notices.

Where applicable, service providers and working partners
are encouraged to follow the principles of environmental
protection, eg use of eco-friendly materials and submission of
document in electronic format.

COSH will continue to make every endeavor to comply with
the green measures.
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Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health

Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

To the Members of Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health
(incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Council on
Smoking and Health Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council
on Smoking and Health ("the Council") set out on pages 102 to
121, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2017, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2017, and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Coundil in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Information Other than the Financial
Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Council members are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Council Members
and Those Charged Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Council members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control
as the Council members determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council members are
responsible for assessing the Council's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Council members either intend to liquidate the Council or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Council's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
17(5) of the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's
internal control.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements (continued)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council members.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council members'
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Council's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Council to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

et e
BRNE G ED

& 2017E7H6H

F.S. Li&Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 July 2017




: % Reports

EHW =T

Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2017F3A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 5E —E—-+tF —E—RF
(B (HK$) Note 2017 2016
WA Income
B RERITTINE BT 2R, Subventions from the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
— A% 2R, General subvention 22,917,565 22,364,439
22 A HE R T AL Women Smoking Cessation Promotion
Programme subvention 3(b) - 533,079
22,917,565 22,897,518
HRITFBHA Bank interest income 61 74
METERA Sundry income 3,256 -
22,920,882 22,897,592
> Expenditure
BB AR R Approved establishment 4 5,351,334 4,929,554
IHEET Project staff 5 1,829,555 1,677,040
MR EE T EIE A Women Smoking Cessation Promotion
Programme expenses 3(Q) - 533,078
EEREEE Publicity and promotion expenses 12,081,237 12,290,497
eREH Conference expenses 103,220 37,861
2EEZERTY Reference books and periodicals 8,121 9,667
WAEHE ZREES Office rent, rates and management fee 2,908,136 2,632,648
EEfHekER Warehouse rent and expenses 200,299 203,837
HIERIREER Repairs and maintenance 9,940 65,972
BRIERER Cleaning wages and fees 55,184 57,612
e Depreciation 17,499 28,809
1R Insurance 68,893 77,647
B8 Electricity 39,907 42,900
BEKEANER Telephone and communication expenses 52,444 45,220
BITHREEA Recruitment expenses 48,180 38,944
BImrkERER Staff training and development expenses 3,500 2,600
EE BERZEER Legal, professional and audit fees 25,800 28,100
g Postage 14,690 13,196
ENfI & 3L A Printing and stationery 63,626 88,307
MIEX Sundry expenses 29,223 58,905
22,910,788 22,862,394
REEFEBER Surplus for the year 6 10,094 35,198
REFZEKRA Total comprehensive income for the year 10,094 35,198
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Statement of Financial Position

MR20176F3831H
At 31 March 2017

Fd 5 —ZT—tHF —E—RF
(%) (HKS) Note 2017 2016
FERENEE Non-current assets

e Y S Property, plant and equipment 8 26,390 40,920
REBEE Current assets

E& RBEMNRIE Deposits and prepayments 9 823,230 830,825

RITERRESETF Bank and cash balances 719,561 541,261

1,542,791 1,372,086
W REAE Less: Current Liabilities

BN ER Accrued charges 1,324,516 1,158,328

FREE Provision for annual leave entitlements 165,473 175,520

FEREIRIEZ 2 N FELTER R Adjusted surplus for the year refundable

to the Department of Health 10 14,577 10,060

EREOFEE RBERH Accumulated surpluses refundable

to the Department of Health 11 203,640 203,640
1,708,206 1,547,548

mENAEE Net current liabilities (165,415) (175,462)

FEE Net liabilities (139,025) (134,542)

ER: representing:

RiEEE Accumulated deficits (139,025) (134,542)
ZEER2017F7A6HEE R EZMRN The financial statements on pages 102 to 121 were approved
F102EEF121BEMF B REK ° and authorized for issue by the Council on 6 July 2017.

£y
BB 18 B% £ MH ABELZ T MH
ZEEXF ZEERIERE
Mr Antonio KWONG Cho-shing, MH Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
Chairman Vice-chairman
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Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2017F3A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 5E —E—+tF —ET—RF
(B¥) (HKS) Note 2017 2016
ZHEEE Accumulated deficit
FEEERZ EE Deficit brought forward (134,542) (159,680)
NEFERHB /AFEEERA Surplus for the year/Total comprehensive
income for the year 10,094 35,198
FEREIRIEE 2 (S FHE R Adjusted surplus refundable to the
Department of Health 10 (14,577) (10,060)
rerEhz (B1E) B (Deficit)/Surplus attributable to the Council (4,483) 25,138
BATNEEZER Deficit carried forward (139,025) (134,542)
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Cash Flow Statement

HZE2017F3A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

—E—tF ZT—RF
(B%) (HK$) 2017 2016
EEFBCRERE Cash flows from operating activities
RNEEBER Surplus for the year 10,094 35,198
EE Adjustment for :
B A Interest income (61) (74)
wE Depreciation 17,499 28,809
LEESH BRI EERR Operating surplus before working capital changes 27,532 63,933
B& RIEAFEZRL (GEm) Decrease/(increase) in deposits and prepayments 7,595 (98,113)
FERTE A2 Increase in accrued charges 166,188 183,328
FREEZ R Decrease in provision for annual leave entitlements (10,047) (35,184)
TEWRZ M REEE T EDERE 2> Decrease in Women Smoking Cessation Promotion
Programme subvention received in advance - (533,079)
CEEBMEE (ER) 2 Net cash from/(used in) operating
FRE activities 191,268 (419,115)
BEE2RERE Cash flows from investing activities
A - WS Rk Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,969) (18,763)
2 UFE Interest received 61 74
WEEEFERZFRE Net Cash used in investing activities (2,908) (18,689)
BMEEH2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BHRROEEE Surplus refunded to the Department of Health (10,060) (20,007)
REEEBIFTE R 2 FR e Net Cash used in financing activities (10,060) (20,007)
RERRESFEZFEM, (D) Net increase/(decrease) 178,300 (457,811)
in cash and cash equivalents
FHRe RN EEET Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 541,261 999,072
FRRRREEEET Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 719,561 541,261
ReRBESFEHETONT Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
RITRBESET Bank and cash balances 719,561 541,261
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. i

BEARELEFEFRLEES [AT] DIRERE
R e R R R B2 K BIM1987F10 A1H+
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1. General

The Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health ("the
Council") is an organization incorporated under the Hong
Kong Council on Smoking and Health Ordinance on

1 October 1987.

AKePENit AE B BT ERFRNER183
SRA A48 44025 4403F ©

The office address of the Council is at Unit 4402-03,

44" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

2. TESTEHEK
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2. Principal accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certificate Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The financial statements have been prepared under the

and

historical cost convention.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting year
of the Council. The adoption of these amendments
to HKFRSs had no material effect on the results and
financial position of the Council for the current and prior
accounting years.

The Council has not early adopted new and revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
accounting year. Explanation of this is included in
Note 15.
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2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

ERET AT BB MELED Z B 5H
R EIRER F L HE - B ARER
WEHEABRZER UARHEE
BE WAMZH 2 REBEBRTE -
B LA FTMB R RER BRI AT LR
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MEEELN EERBRTERER
BARKBEEMEENGSHNEERAR
Z VR B IR P VB 1 B 2 B - BIR 45
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(b) BATER

(i) BAGA A EBHEREN A BUTERL
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(i) SRITH B AL BRI RERGT -

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

(b) Revenue recognition

(i) Government subventions are recognized as income
over periods necessary to match them with the
related costs they are intended to compensate,
on a systematic basis when there is reasonable
assurance that the Council will comply with the
conditions attaching of them and the subventions
will be received. Government subventions received
before the revenue recognition criteria satisfied are
recognized as a liability.

(iBank interest income is recognized as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(c) Foreign currencies translation

The Council's functional currency and presentation
currency are Hong Kong dollars. Transactions arising
in foreign currencies are converted at exchange rates
approximating to those ruling at transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the end of reporting period are translated
at rates of exchange approximating to those ruling at
that date. All exchange differences are dealt with in
surplus or deficit.

(d) Impairment losses

At the end of each reporting period, where there is any
indication thatan asset, including items of property, plant
and equipment, is impaired, the recoverable amount of
the asset should be estimated. The recoverable amount
of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. If the recoverable amount is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognized in surplus or deficit.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment
loss should not result in the asset's carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
has no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to surplus or
deficit in the year in which the reversals are recognized.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plantand equipmentare stated at historical cost
less any subsidies received or receivable, accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment less subsidies received
or receivable and accumulated impairment losses over
their estimated useful lives using a straight-line basis at
the following rates:

Leasehold improvements  over unexpired period of lease
Furniture and fixtures 25 percent per annum
Office equipment 25 percent per annum

(f) Assets held under operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases are charged to surplus or deficit on a straight-line
basis over the lease periods.

(g) Deposits
Deposits are initially recognized at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortized cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(h) Accrued charges

Accrued charges are initially recognized at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortized cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits
with banks within 3 months to maturity from date of
deposit.
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2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(j) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting period.

(k) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, related
party includes a person and an entity as defined below:

(i) A person or a close member of that person's family
is related to the Council if that person:

(a) has control or joint control of the Council;

(b) has significant influence over the Council; or

(0) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Council.

(i) An entity is related to the Council if any of
the following conditions applies:

(@) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the Council
or an entity related to the Council. If the Council
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Council.

(b) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(o) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant over
the entity oris a member of the key management
personnel of the entity.

(d) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Council.
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3. WMEMIEH EFTE 3. Women Smoking Cessation
Promotion Programme
FREEBWRERLE®950,0007T - The Council had received a subvention of HK$950,000 from )
FALREZ SR IEHRETE - B EELE the Department of Health to launch the Women Smoking
BWART B ZF BT : Cessation Promotion Programme. The details of subvention

recognition, income and expenditure are as follow:

(a) REETERR (a) Subvention recognition
—E2—+tHF ZT—RF
(B¥) (HKS) 2017 2016
R AKA Recognized as income - 533,079
HEFEEERA Transfer from liability to income - (533,079)
FEAL R Total subvention -
(b) WA (b) Income
—E—+F —E—RF
(E%) (HK$) 2017 2016
B RERERL Recognized subvention - 533,079
(c) Xt (c) Expenditure \
—E—+tF —E—RF
(E¥) (HKS) 2017 2016
SEREEER Publicity and promotion expenses - 362,719
e Salaries = 160,534
SRTES HIR Mandatory provident fund contributions - 8,026
IR Insurance = 1,799
- 533,078
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4. HEEBV R

4. Approved establishment

—E—t5F ZE—RF
(&%) (HKS) 2017 2016
e O Salaries and allowances 5,219,695 4,807,482
BB MR Mandatory provident fund contributions 143,049 144,175
SRR 5 4 o) 42 Provision for annual leave entitlements written back (11,410) (22,103)
5,351,334 4,929,554
= .
.IBEERT 5. Project staff

—E—t5F ZE—RF
(%) (HKS) 2017 2016
e Salaries 1,750,209 1,614,414
BB MR Mandatory provident fund contributions 77,983 75,707

FREAE /(BB Provision for annual leave entitlements made/
(written back) 1,363 (13,081)
1,829,555 1,677,040

 AFERER

REZRHBEMRTIIER:

6. Surplus for the year

Surplus for the year is stated after charging the followings:

—ZE—tHF T —RF

(B¥) (HK$) 2017 2016

BIKA * Staff costs * 7,231,290 6,824,237
T REFKEHERS Rentals of land and buildings held under

Sy operating leases 2,620,656 2,363,396

* BIESN E R TR RIS S
221,0327T(20164F : 229,1127T)

SRR

* including contribution of HK$221,032 (2016 : HK$229,112) to

defined contribution provident fund scheme.
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7. Council members' remuneration

None of the Council members received any remuneration
in respect of their services to the Council during the year

(2016 : Nil).

8. Property, plant and equipment

HEYE AR WAZE
BRI REE B
Leasehold Furniture Office FEE L]
(%) (HK$) improvements and fixtures equipment Total
2% Cost
R2015F3A31H At 31 March 2015 36,305 106,016 523,042 665,363
NE Additions - 5,360 13,403 18,763
R201653H31H At 31 March 2016 36,305 111,376 536,445 684,126
NE Additions - - 2,969 2,969
H201743A31H At 31 March 2017 36,305 111,376 539414 687,095
REWE Accumulated depreciation
R2015%F3H31H At 31 March 2015 36,305 101,706 476,386 614,397
#HZE2016F3A31H1E Charge for the year ended
FETR 31 March 2016 - 4,081 24,728 28,809
M201653H31H At 31 March 2016 36,305 105,787 501,114 643,206
HE2017F3A31HLE Charge for the year ended
FETR 31 March 2017 - 2,222 15,277 17499
H201743A31H At 31 March 2017 36,305 108,009 516,391 660,705
R E B Net book value
H201743A31H At 31 March 2017 = 3,367 23,023 26,390
R201653H31H At 31 March 2016 - 5,589 35,331 40,920
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9. BMERFANFIE

10.

BHEeRN " FEREREZESABE
544 ,15275(2016%F : JB#544,1527T)
AR R IEE®E279,0787T (20164 ¢
7E#286,673L)BER—FREHZA
B -

Deposits and prepayments

The amount of deposits expected to be recovered
after one year is HK$544,152 (2016:HK$544,152). The
prepaymentsin sum of HK$279,078 (2016:HK$286,673)
are expected to be recognized as expenses within one
year.

ERER4ER 2 KRR AR 10. Adjusted surplus refundable to the
HN R R AR AR Department of Health
RIEF R R L AR - R As the Department of Health does not recognize the
*’%ag& REHAE RIEAFEHNEBM A provision for annual leave entitlements as expenses
AR EH K AT o B - TE AT B R Bl iR until actual payment is made, and regards additions to
EEZRBHE TREFREE AR property, plant and equipment as expenses during the
B BERR {%EGM%&%% ¥ year of acquisition without recognition of write-off and
FRYIR - AR AR A E depreciation, accordingly, for the purpose of calculating
the surplus refundable to the Department of Health,
the provision/provision written back for annual leave
entitlements and write-off and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment have been excluded, and additions
to property, plant and equipment have been deducted.
—E—tF —E—RF
(B (HK$) 2017 2016
REE BER Surplus for the year 10,094 35,198
e Add: Depreciation 17,499 28,809
W MR R BRERIRE Less: Additions to property, plant and equipment (2,969) (18,763)
FRE DB Provision for annual leave entitlements
written back (10,047) (35,184)
EREFREENLAERS Adjusted surplus refundable to
the Department of Health 14,577 10,060

M. BREEFEEZRERE

SERERRBE1998F3A3BRHE
ﬁ%ﬂ% REEZEZRERED -

11. Accumulated surpluses refundable to

the Department of Health

The management of the Council considers that the
accumulated surpluses up to 31 March 1998 will be
refunded to the Department of Health upon request.
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12. S RIEERSREE 12. Financial assets and liabilities
() cMEERABEH (a) Categories of financial assets and liabilities
gt —TxE
(&) (HKS) 2017 2016
ERMEE Financial assets
MBNEE - B HNAE: Current assets - at amortized cost:
Ee Deposits 544,152 544,152
RITRBSHET Bank and cash balances 719,561 541,261
1,263,713 1,085,413
LRIEE Financial liabilities
MBNEE - LB HEAE: Current liabilities - at amortized cost:
ENER Accrued charges 1,324,516 1,158,328
FRR A Provision for annual leave entitlements 165,473 175,520
FEREEEBZAFE Adjusted surplus for the year refundable
AR RS to the Department of Health 14,577 10,060
FEREIEEEZ RREAM Accumulated surpluses refundable to the
Department of Health 203,640 203,640
1,708,206 1,547,548
(b) iR EENEERBE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
TR EEEFR AW A 2I1FAE AN In the normal course of the operation, the Council
ANEE [ B~ 2K R B AN 7 m M (B AR R does not expose to significant foreign currency risk,
Fex o ELpth B\ P Rzt an T interest rate risk and commodity and price risks. Other
risks are described below:
(i) EERMK it risk
~ . L i) Credit ris
A& ERARAS AR WS
= {H E’\;]Lﬁﬁ%ﬁ%_ﬁ T 41 The Council's credit risk is primarily attributable
Zﬁﬁ? R EERBITRE A o to cash at bank and is insignificant because the

counterparty is a bank with high credit rating.
(i) BV E E E

$@@E AEs B IR A TERT BB (i) Liquidity risk

BEMER IR SRR H The Council's policy is to regularly monitor current
Jﬁ{ﬁ 2 4 ER BN B B R B and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
BEEKo that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
R2017F K 20163 A31A A& term.
PRBEZNBREAERTE—
FELR ZES ARG EEMEME As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the contractual

EAH AL KBRS o maturities of all the Council's financial liabilities,

whose carrying amounts are equal to total
contracted undiscounted cash flows, are due

within one year.
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12. cRIEEREREE @ 12. Financial assets and liabilities (continved)
(c) BEEE (c) Fair values
R2017FE K 2016F3A3TEFEEME All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
EleRaBErEERESEEETE not materially different from their fair values as at 31
BARAER - SIEBEENERERESR March 2017 and 2016. The fair value is estimated as the
SRR XS REm G present value of future cash flows, discounted at current
market interest rate.
3. & FH 2 EE 13. Commitments under operating leases
RIPEEIR AN BIE TN i & At the end of reporting period, the Council had the
B3 %%%fﬂfﬁﬁ,/ﬁ’\ﬂijiiﬁﬁ’jﬁ—{fﬁfﬂ following future aggregate minimum lease payments
ENREEIT under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land
and buildings:
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
(%) (HKS) 2017 2016
—FR Not later than one year 2,467,656 2,437,056
F_EFRFNR Later than one year but not later than five years 2,437,056 183,600
4,904,712 2,620,656
14. BEEEALTRS 14. Related party transactions

EEENAERERIEALAEITH AR
HERHIT

During the year the Council undertook the following
transactions with related parties in the normal course of
its operation:

—E—tF —ERF
(B¥) (HKS) 2017 2016
EIE A BN Remuneration for key management personnel
(Bla® =) (i.e. Executive Director)
HHIE T2 F Short-term employee benefits 1,705,792 1,521,000
B 24 A Post-employment benefits 18,000 18,000
1,723,792 1,539,000
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15. New and revised HKFRSs that are not

yet effective

The Council has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
accounting year:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle 1,2

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative 1

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 2

HKFRS 16, Leases 3

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

The management of the Council will assess the impact
of the application of HKFRS 16. For the moment, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of HKFRS 16 until a detailed review has been completed.

Except as described above, the management of the
Council do not anticipate that the application of other
new and revised HKFRSs will have a material effect on the
amounts recognized in the Council's financial statements.
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